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Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Manchester, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Manchester, Tennessee, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise tha City's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Managemeni's Responsibilify for the Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal contral relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audil. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statemsnts are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disciosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmenis,
the auditors consider internal conirol relevant to the eniity's preparation and fair preseniation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audi
opinion.

Cpinion

The City of Manchester had a fundamental lack of internal controls over capital assets. As a result, a timely and
effective way to test capital assets is not determinable.

In our opinion, except for the effect of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had
the capital assets been audited, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
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aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Manchester, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General
Fund, General Purpose School Fund, and Debt service Fund thereot for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Malfers
Required Supplemeniary Information

Accouniing principles generally accepted in the United States of America require thai the management's discussion
and analysis and the schedules of funding progress on pages 3-12 and 50 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures io the required suppiementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquirtes of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Manchester, Tennessee's basic financial statements. The introductory section and other supplementary
information section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.5. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Awdiis of Siates, Local Governments, and Norn-
Frofit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statemenis.

With the exception of the reporting worksheet and performance indicators, the other supplementary information
section is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly o the underlying accounting and
other records used io prepare the basic financial statemments. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Siates of America. In our opinion, the other
supplementary information section, with the exception of the reporting worksheet, is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whaole.

The introductory section, reporting worksheet, and performance indicators have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Siandards, we have also issued our reports dated March 30, 2015, on our
consideration of the City of Manchesier, Tennessee's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreemenis and olher matters. The
purpose of those reports is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal contral over financial reporting or
on compliance. These reports are an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audiiing
Standards in considering City of Manchester, Tennessee's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Manchester, Tennessee (the City) we offer readers of the City's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2014. The analysis focuses on significant financial position, budget changes and
variances from the budget, and specific issues related to funds and the economic factors affecting the
City.

Financial Highlights:

»  The assets of the City of Manchester exceeded its lizbilities at the close of the most recent year
by $34,287,002.94. Of this amount, $8,634,022.35 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations o citizens and creditors.

#  The Recreation Center received a Diabetes Grant A from the Department of Health in the
amount of $150,000 each year with a City match of $30,000 for three years.

= The Recreation Center received a LPRF grant for Manchester Sports Park-Soccer Complex Phase
I in the amount of 587,500 each year for two years.

= The Recreation Center received a Diabetes Grant B from the Department of Health in the
amount of 515,000 each year for two years.

s The City of Manchester started a Safe Route to Schools Project for sidewalks using 2 TDOT grant
for funding.

w  The City of Manchester Police Department also received a grant from the Governor’s Highway
Safety in the amount of $30,000 for car camera systems.

s The City of Manchester started the Greenway Extension Project for the Downtown area with a
portion of the funding coming from grant maney from TDOT, STP funds, and local match from
City of Manchester and Tourism.

= As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $9,51%,533.78.

m  The Government Accounting Standards Board issued Statement 54: Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The implementation date for this standard is for periods
beginning after June 15, 2010, which means FYE June 30, 2011. Governmental accounting
standards now require the reporting of five classifications of fund batance: Non-Spendahle,
Restricted, Committed, Assigned and Unassigned. The City's audited financial statement
addresses four categories: Non-spendable 5232,695.60; Assigned $5,522,867.37; Restricted
$757,531.09; and Unassigned $3,006,439.72. The Unassigned Fund Balance is available for
spending at the government’s discretion.



Overview of the Financial Statements:

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Manchester’s basic
financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-
wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and {3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial siatements

themselves.

Government-wide financial statements — The Government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector

business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liahilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Qver time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as z useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of relatad cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reporied in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods {e.g., uncollected tax and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs thraugh user fees and charges {business-
type activities). The governmenta] activities of the City of Manchaster include general government,
public works, pubiic safety, state street aid, public welfare and recreation and schools. The business-
tyne activities of the City include Water and Sewer services.

The governmeni-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13-14 of this report.

Fund Financial statements — A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control

over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Manchester,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-refated legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into twao categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are funds used to account for essentially the same functions

reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financiat statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, government fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources availabie at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term

financing requirements.



Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental aciivities in the goverament-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may be better to understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activiiies.

The City maintains twelve individual governmental funds. information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and General Purpose School Fund which are
considerad to be major funds. Data for the other ten governmental funds are combined into a single,
agpregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements later in this report beginning on page 53.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the major governmental funds to demaonstrate compliance with this

budget, as well as for the non-major funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15- 18 and 22 - 26 of this

report.

Proprietary Funds — The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented in the business-type activities in the governmental-wide financial
statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account Tor its Water and Sewer operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the governmenti-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financiat statements provide information for Water and Sewer
operations which is considered to be a major fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 - 21 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the financial statements can be found on pages 27 - 48 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to eariier in connection with non-major
governmential funds are presented immediately following the notes to financial statements. Combining
and individual fund statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 53 of this report.




Financial Analysis of the Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Manchester, assets exceedad liabilities by 534,287,002.94 at tha close
of this fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City’s assets (72.01%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
buildings, machinery, and equipment and infrastructure) less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannat be used to

liguidate these labilities.

City of Manchester’s Net Position

Governmental Activities Business type Activities
2014 2013 2014 2013

Current and other assets $15,876,229 517,391,650 $13,610,919 $14,852,588
Capital Assets 29,553,818 29,726,399 34,661,767 34,069,061
Total Assets 45,870,047 47,118,045 48,272,686 48,921,649
Long-term liabilities outstanding 24,572,498 25,207,688 26,481,561 27,320,449
Other Liahilities 6,985,266 7,423,600 1,816,405 2,330,524
Total Liabilities 31,557,764 32,631,288 28,297,966 29,650,973
Net Position

Net Investmant in Capital Assets 7,238,507 6,332,915 17,451,822 16,344,711
Restricted 962,252 749,127

Unrestricted 6,111,124 7,404,719 2,522,898 2,925,966
Total net position $14,312,283 $14,486,761 $19,974,720 §19,270,677

Changes in net position. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by $174,478.

Business-type activities net position increased by $704,044,

The table below provides a summary of the City’s net assets broken down by governmental and

business-type activities.



City of Manchester’s Changes in Net Position

Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

General Revenues

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Other

Total revenues

General Government

Water & Sewer

City judge
Mayor's Office
Finance Dept.
Police

Fire

Public Works
Sanitation
Planning/Zoning
Recreation
Education
General Government
Contributians

Interest on debt

Total expenses

Change in Net
Position

Net Positicn, as previously reported

Restatement from prier year

MNet Position, beg. Of year as restatad

Net Pasition, end of year

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

2014 2013 2014 2013
$2,708,613 42,698,297 56,595,727  $5,282,592
8,148,064 8,560,584
842,588 110,545
6,537,805 7,078,261
7,281,715 7,256,230
721,917 698,022
1,452,998 415,393 13,060 12,664
$29,093,500 526,817,338 56,608,787 55,295,256
$12,000 5 10,000
322,443 439,328
307,253 340,845
2,688 444 2,825,522
1,922,889 1,957,024
1,777,272 1,555,996
1,013,308 981,947
262,225 270,837
1,912,156 1,840,942
15,982,884 14,982,813
1,393,810 1,135,755
126,532 126,800
893,842 1,045,418

5,770,952 5,791,619
528,615,058 527,717,727 55,770,852  $5,791,619

478,441 {900,388} 837,835 (496,364)
14,486,761 15,274,218 19,270,677 19,767,040
{652,920) 112,931 {133,792)

13,833,841 15,274,218 19,136,885 19,767,040
514,312,283  $14,486,761 518,974,720 518,270,677




Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

Revenues
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Expenditures — Governmental Activities
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Significant variances in Governmental Activities revenues and expenditures from that of the prior year

were as follows:

e Although the property taxes and sales taxes decreased by $115,171, the Genera! Fund still had
an overall increase in revenue of $946,323,

e The overali expenditures increased by approximately $897,331. The increase is due to inflation
in supplies and equipment, additional training for employees, and uc%:mmmm of fire truck.

s  Education expenditures increased by $999,971 as a result of much higher than average costs
associated with FY14 textbook purchases, costs incurred purchase of multiple instructional
software programs and accompanying support, NIET TAP grant, and a major roof repair at
Westwood Elementary School.

Business-type Activitias

Business-type activities accounted for revenue of $6,757,381.07 which includes contributed capital.



Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonsirate compliance with finance-

related legal requirements.
Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Manchester’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balanca may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal vear.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmentai funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $9,519,534, a decrease of $906,244 in comparison with the prior year. Within the
governmental funds, $64,541 is restricted for Inventory and Prepaid Costs in the General Fund and
523,434 in the School Cafeteria Fund. In the General Purpose School Eund, $277,882 is restricted for
ESP and We Care.

The general fund is the chief operation fund of the City of Manchester, Tennessee. Due to the
compliance of GASB 54, the general fund recognizes “unassigned” fund balance instead of “unreserved”
fund balance. At the end of this fiscal year, this amount is $3,006,440. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total general fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 35.2% of tatal general fund
expenditures.

The City’s general fund had a negative Net Change in Fund Balance of $285,250.
Proprietary funds

The City’'s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail,

Unrestricted Net Assets at the end of the year for the Water and Sewer Fund amounted to
$2,522,898.51. This represents total Net Assets at June 30, 2014 of $19,974,720.33.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were as follows: changes (o
revenues were as follows: General Fund — increase of 5104,728; General Purpose School Fund — increase
of $526,995; School Federal and State Programs — the change was insignificant; changes to
appropriations of General Fund increase $92,806; General Purpose School Fund ~ increase $562,922;
School Federal and State Programs — the change was insignificant.

Specific Revenue increases for the General Fund and General Purpose School Fund were as follows:

10



Budgeted Amounts

General Fund Original Final
Revenues:

Total Taxes Revenue S 9,670,384 59,586,884
General Purpose School Fund:

Revenues S 10,903,906 511,430,901

Operating Transfer-General Fund 5 1,678,467 51,678,457

Capital Asseis

The City of Manchester’s investment in capital assets from its governmental and business-type activities
at June 30, 2014, amounts to $64,655,584.85 {net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes jand, building, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads,

highways and bridges. The total of the City's investment in capital asseis for the current fiscal year

increased in the amount of $828,999.26 (a net increase of $236,293.63 for governmental activities and a
net increase of $592,705.63 for husiness-type activities).

City of Manchester’s Capital Assets

Land
Buildings/tand improvement
and utility plant

Eguipment and furniture
Infrastructure
Vehicles

Construction in progress

Less Accumuiated Depreciation

Met Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 4,386,423 S 210,937 S 4,607,361
27,472,613 48,455,236 75,927,849
2,127,642 1,221,532 3,344,174
23,755,279 23,755,275
4,112,034 4,112,034
1,008,575 1,615,534 2,624,109
62,867,566 51,503,238 114,370,805
32,873,748 16,841,473 49,715,221
529,993,818 $34,661,766 564,655,584

Additional information on the City of Manchester’s capital assets can ke found in the notes to the

financial statements section of this report.

i



Long-term Debt

At the end of the current year, the City of iManchester had bonded debt outstanding of 550,095,856, Of
this amount, $1,753,173 is due in the next fiscal year.

City of Manchester’s Outstanding Debt

Governmental  Business-type

Activities Activities Total

Principal due in the next fiscal year 5 628,571 1,124,602 1,753,173

The City of Manchester's comhined total bonded debt decreased in the amount of 51,442,377 during
the current fiscal year.

Additional infermation on the City of Manchester’'s debt can be found in the notes to the financial
statements section of this report.

Currently Known Factors Affecting Future Years

The unemptoyment rate for the Coffee County at the end of the fiscal year was 6.6%. This compares to
the State’s average unemployment rate of 7.4% and the national average rate of 6.3%. Due to the
economic situation, the City used the conservative approach in the preparation of next year's budget.
Property tax collection and local option sales tax were increased stightly in an anticipation of a slow

econcmy.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Manchester, Tennessae’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the Finance Director/Chief Financial Officer, 200 West Fort Sireet, Manchester, TN 37355,

12



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2014

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowance for uncoliectibles)

Inventories

internal balances

Capital assets:

Non depreciable

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Receivable from Duck River Utility District

Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounis payable
Accrued expenses
Custorner deposits
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilites

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOQURCES

Deferred revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for: {Note 10)
Specific purposes

BEP
ESP

School food service

We Care
Unrestricted
Total net position

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business - iype
Activities

Total

$ 7,839,523.15
7,699,581.98
87.875.60
104,427.54

5,042,410.19
24,951,408.19
0.00
144,720.00

$ 2,880,586.79
546,941.50
152,518.68
(104,427 54)

1,826,470.88
32,835,285.59
10,135,000.00
0.00

3

10,720,100.94
8,246,523.48
240,794.26
0.60

6,868,881.07
57,786,703.78
10,135,000.00
144,720.00

45,870,048.65

48,272,685.88

94,142,732.53

607,999.42
575,875.59
0.00

628,5671.42
24,572,498.13

338,890.43
40,466.16
312,446.53

1,124,602.02
26,481,560.41

946,889.85
616,441.75
312,446.53

1,763,173.44
51,054,058.54

26,385,044.56

28,207,965.55

54,683,010.11

5,172,715.48 0.00 5,172,719.48
5,172,718.48 0.00 5,172,719.48
7.,238,906.65 17,4561,821.82 24,680,728.47
471,085.37 0.co 471,065.37
203,173.00 0.00 203,173.00
£9,668.27 0.00 65,668.27
213,304.65 (.00 213,304.65
5,040.83 0.00 5,040.83
6,111,123.84 2,522 898,51 8,634,622.35

$ 14,312,282.61

5 _19,574,720.33 § 34,287,002.94

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this staiement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Functions/Programs:
Primary Government:

Governmen! Activities:
City judge
Mayor's office
Finance department
Police
Fire
Public works
Sanitation
Planning and zoning
Recreation
Education
General government
Coniributions
inlerest on debt
Total Government Activities

Business-type Activities
Water and sewer

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENTS

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Nel Assels

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemant.
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Cperating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Granis and Grants and Governmenial Business-iype
Expenses Services Coniributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
& 12,000.00 § 0.00 & 0.00 § 000 & (12,000.00) & 0.00 % {12,000.00)
322,443.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 {322,443.48) 0.00 {322,443.48)
307,252.54 0.00 0.0C 0.00 {307,252.54) 0.00 {307,252.54)
2,688,443.76 262,326.23 0.00 28,084.91 (2,398,032.62) 0.C0 {2,398,032.62)
1,822.888,49 0.00 0.0C 0.00 (1,922,889.49) 0.00 (1,922,889.45)
1,777,271.71 0.00 178,217.12 0.00 (1,588,054.59) 0.00 (1,598,054.58)
1,013,308.07 991,312.32 0.00 0.00 (21,885.75) 0.00 (21,995.75)
262,224.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 {262,224.62) 0.00 (262,224.62)
1.812,156.25 1,090,818.60 5,000.00 290,000.00 (526,337.65) 0.00 (526,337.65)
15,082,883.58 347,426.19 8,961,346.58 0.00 (6,674,110.81) 0.00 (6,674,110.81)
1.393,810.49 16,730.10 2,500.00 524,502.66 (850,077.73) 0.00 {850,077.73)
126,532.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 (128,532.53) 0.00 (126,532.53)
893,841.87 0.CO 0.00 0.00 {893,841.87) 0.00 (893,841.87)
28,615,058.38 2,708,613.44 5,148,083.70 842,687.57 {15,915,7583.68) 0.00 (15,915,793.68)
5,770,851.72 6,595,728.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 824 775,00 824,775.00
5,770,8951.72 6,585,726.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 824,775,00 B24,775,00
% 3438801017 & 930434016 & 9,148,083.70 % 842 587.57 (15,915,793,68) 824,775.00 (15,091,018.68)
General Revenues:
Fropery taxes and in lieu of {ax 6,937,604.75 0.00 6,937,604.75
Sales laxes 7.281,715.01 0.00 7,281,715.01
Other state shared laxes 721,217.38 0.00 721,917.28
Lisenses and permits 95,519.50 .00 89.519.80
Unrestricted investment earnings and rental incoms 54,283.88 13,060.28 67,344.17
Oiher 1,296,194.61 0.00 1,289,194.61
Total general revenues and transiers 16,394,235.13 13,060,289 16,407,285.42
Change in net position 478,441.45 837,835.29 1,316,278.74
Net position - beginning of year, as praviously reported 14,486,761.09 18,270,678.61 33,757.437.70
Restatemeni (Note 17) {652,919.83) (133,751.57) (786,711.50)
Net posiiion - beginning of vear, as resiated 13,833,.841.16 19,136,885.04 32,870.726.20
Net position - ending % 14,312,282.61 & 19,8974,720.33 & 34,287,002.94




CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2014

Ganeral
Purpose Debi Other
Genearal School Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash 208240806 § 274040746 5 2,154,88655 8 B52,021.08 § 7,839,523.15
Recaivables, less aliowance for doubtiul accounts 8,376,537.01 508,739.45 0.00 724,304,682 7.6689,581.,88
Due from other funds 9,004,987 0.00 0.00 96,131.41 165,226.38
Prepaid costs 0.00 144,720,600 0.00 Q.00 144,720.00
Inventories 64,541,39 .00 0.00 23,434,21 87,875.60
Toial Assels % B,542,582.33 & 3,483,886.91 B 2,1584,8B6.58 & 1,695,8591.32 & i5,877.027.11
LIABILITIES
Accounis payable 3 22514812 % 7224853 0§ 000 & 316,603.77 B 407,989 .42
Accrued costs 137,025.29 34386593 0.00 95 084.37 57597558
Due to other funds 0.00 798.84 0.00 0.00 798.84
Defarred revenue 5,108,429.81 0.00 0.00 53,288.67 5,172,719.48
Total Liab 5,471,601.22 416,914.30 0.00 468,977.81 6,357,483.33
FUND BALAMCES
MNonspendable G4,541.38 144,720.00 0.00 23,434,241 282,695.60
Rastricled 0.00 277,882,410 0.00 4702,648.08 757,531.00
Assigned 0.60 2,644,350.51 2,154,688.55 723,830.31 5,522,867.37
Unassignad 3,006,439.72 .00 0.08 .00 3,006,438.72
Total Fund Balances 3,070,981.11 3,066,052.61 2,154,686.55 1,2208,913.51 9,519,533.78
Total Lizbilities and Fund Balances 5 B8,542,582.33 § 3,483,866.91 H 2,154 68555 & {.695,881.32 & 15,877,087.11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANGCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for fund balances - iotal governmental funds 3 9,516,533.78

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets, net of depreciation:, are not reported in this fund financial statement because
they are not current financial resources, but they are reporied in the statement of net

position. 25,993,818.38

Certain liabilities are not reporied in this fund financial statement because they are not due
and payable within one year, but they are presented in the statement of net position.
Bonds Payable - ($22,754,811.73)
OPEB Obligation - {$665,457.00)
Compensated Absences - ($1,780,700.82) (25,201,068.55)

Net position of governmental activities 5 14,312,282 .61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemeant.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND GHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

General
Purpose Uabt Other Total
Geanerai School Service Governmenial Governmenial
Fund Fund Fund Funds Furds
REVENUES
Taxes 5 §,747,955.85 § 368591777 & 000 8§ 237157.97 & 13,671,631.55
Licenses and parmils ©9,519.50 0.65 .00 0.00 89,518.50
Fines and fess 262,326.23 0.60 0.00 .00 262,326.23
Charges for services 16,730.10 150,200.62 .00 2,287,391.4 2,454,322.21
Intergovernmental 1,580,105.24 7,341,323.89 ¢.00 1,969,165.65 10,860,594.88
Uses of money and property Q.00 G,208.69 47,864,681 0.00 54,073.30
Miscellaneous 152,868.55 96,226.84 .00 1.245.145.88 1,494,341.48
Total Revenue 11,829,605.47 11,279,878.(1 47.864.61 5,738,861.10 28,896,209.19
EXPENDITURES
Current:
City judge 12,000.00 0.00 4.00 0.00 12,000.00
Mayor's office 311,651.28 0.60 8.00 0.00 311,051.28
Finance departrment 289,689,564 0.00 g.0¢ 0.00 209,689.84
Information systems 113,185.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,185,17
Polica 2.611,276.20 0.00 g.0¢ 0.00 2,611,276.20
Fire 1,893,961.70 0.00 8.00 0.80 1,883,861.70
Public works 1,587,733.47 0.00 4.00 G.00 1,587,733.47
Sanitation 0.00 0.00 0,00 890,578.74 580,578.74
Planning and zoning 2509,414.50 0.00 0.00 .00 £59,414.50
Parks and recreation 0.00 0.00 4,00 1,638,755.43 1,638,755.43
Ecucation:
Administration 0.00 1,8940,475.28 0.00 3.00 1,840,475.28
Regular education 0.00 7ABT 7214 0.00 (.00 748771214
Special education 0.00 1,447,991.03 Q.00 .00 1,447.9691.03
Attendance 0.00 103,873.23 .00 .00 103,873.23
Health services and other student support 0,00 420,327.96 0.00 0.00 420,327,885
Instructional staft 0.00 594,773.90 0.60 0.00 694,773.80
Plant aperaticns 0.00 824,495.40 0.60 0.00 B24,499.40
Plant maintanance 0.00 8106,543.58 0.G0 0.00 5106,543.58
Transportation 0.00 34,617.43 0.00 9.00 34,617.43
Community services 0.00 195,218.42 0.0 0.00 195,218.42
Program costs 0.00 0.00 1,860.00 1,902,791.52 1,904,651.52
General govemnment 520,831.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 520,831,20
Contributions 126,532.53 0.00 0.40 0.00 1246,632.53
Debt sarvice 0.00 0.60 12,702,415.29 Q.00 12,702,413.29
Capital outlay 797,182.00 0.00 0.80 1,861,576.10 2,458,758.10
Total Expendiiuras B,532,867.95 13,760,033.37 12,704,273.29 6,183,701.79 41,190.876.44
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) REVEMUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3,206,737.48 {2,480,155.36) {12,656,408.68) {454,840.69) {12,204, 067,25

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
{.oan proceeds
Bond premivms
Bond issuance cosis
Capital contributions
Opearating fransfers from other junds
Operating transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, beginning of year, as previously reported
Restatement (Note 17)

Fund Balance, beginning of year, as restated

11,170,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,170,000.00
144,976.67 0.00 0.0¢ 0.00 144,576.67
(112,103.34) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (112,103.34)
153,195.00 0.00 0.00 .00 153,195.00
0.00 1,678,457.00 12,702,413.28 679,387.00 15,060,267.29
(14.938,055.33) 0.00 0.00 (122,211,96) {15,060,267.29)
{3.581,887.00) 1,678,467.00 12,702,413.26 557,175.04 11,356,068.33
(285,249.52) (801,688.36) 46,004.61 102,334.35 {938,598.92)
3,356,230.63 3,868,640.97 2,108,681.84 1,002,223.83 16,425,777.37
0.00 0.00 0.00 32,366.33 32,365,343
3,356,230.63 3,868,640.97 2.108,681.84 1,124,578, 16 10.458,132.70

§ 307088191 § 306685261 & 2154680655 § 1,826,813.51 & 8.518,533.78

Fund Balance, ending &

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this staiement.
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CITY OF MANGCHESTER, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for fund balances - total governmeanial funds

Capital outlays are reporied as expenditures in this fund financial statement because they
use current financial resourcas, but they are presented as assels in the statement of
activities and depreciated over their estimated economic lives, The amouni by which capital
outlays are reported in the Governmental Funds is more than depreciation for the year.
Capital outlays:  $2,458,758.10
Depreciation: {$1,501,028.73)

Gains and losses are not presented in this financial statement because they do naot provide
or use current financial resources, but they are presented in the statement of activities.

Payment of compensated absences is reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
when actually paid. However, on the government - wide statement of changes in net assets
compensated absences are expensed as they are accrued.

Change in the compensaied absences liability

OFEB benefits cannot be used until the employee is no longer employed by the Gity,
therefore they are not paid in cash uniil a date that may exiend weil into the future.
Change in OPEB cbligations

The issuance of long - term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Meither fransaction, however, has any effect on net
assets.

Loan proceeds: $11,170,000.00
Note principal retiremeni: $11,808,571.42

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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(938,598.92)

957.731.37

{100,881.02)

(1,924.40)

(76,457.00)

(11,170,000.00)
11,808,571.42

478,441.45




CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

June 30, 2014

Waler and
Sewaer
Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash $  2,88058679 &  Z,B80,58679
Accounts receivable {net of allowances for uncollectibles) 546,941.50 546,841.50
Inveniories 152,818.65 152,818.66
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 34,661,766.47 34,661,766.47
Receivable from DRUC 10,135,000.00 10,135,000.00
TOTAL ASSETS 48,377,113.42 48,377,113.42
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 338,890.43 338,880.43
Accrued expensses 301,683.84 301,683.54
Due to other funds 104,427.54 104,427 .54
Customer deposits 312,446.53 312,446.53
Noncurrent liahilities
Pue within one year 1,124,602.02 1,124,602.02
Due in more than one year 26,220,342.63 26,220,342.63
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,402,383.08 28,402,383.09
NET POSITION
Net invesiment in capital assets 17,451,821.82 17,451,821.82
Unrestricted 2,522,888.51 2,522,898.51
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 1967472033 § 19,974,720.33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Operating Revenues:
Metered water sales
Sewer service charges
Other revenues from operations
Total Operating Revenues:
Operating Expenses:
Water Distribution:
Water purchased
Utilities
Shop and Maintenance:
Salaries
Employes benefits
Utilities
Repair and maintenance
Operating supplies
Administraticn and General:
Salaries
Employee banefits
Services
Supplies
Insurance
Other
Sewer Treatment:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Services
Supplies
Mechanical Maintenance:
Salaries
Employes benefits
Supplies
Depreciation and Amortization
Total Operating Expenses

Operating income
Noneperating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest income
Bend premiums
Bond issuance cosis
Loss on sates of fixed assets
Other income
interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Loss hefore capital contributions
Capital contributions

Change in Fund Net Position

Net position, beginning of yaar, as previously reported

Restatement (Note 17)

Net positian, beginning of year, as restated

Net pasition, ending

Water and
Sawer
Fund Total
4 286543375 § 2,865,433.75
1,883,807.72 1,993,607.72
351,885.04 351,885.04
5,210,826.51 5,210,826.51
1,137,855.80 1,137,855.80
82,714.58 82,714,509
808,670.02 508,670.02
393,456.85 393,456.85
4,729.55 4,729.55
174,625.38 174,625.38
§0,253.99 60,253.90
130,259.65 130,258.65
54,354.95 54,394.98
65,221.02 £5,221.02
14,307.01 14,307.01
12,290.00 12,290.00
8,398.23 $,398.23
133,057.05 133,057.05
63,241.30C 53,241.30
387,670.23 387.,070.23
48,312.80 48,312.80
80,6524.65 80,524.65
30,910.94 30,910,894
3,152.1g 3152148
1,365,136.64 1,365,136.64
5,178,582.78 5,178,582.78
32,343.73 32,343.73
13,060.29 13,060.29
269,114.57 269,114.57
(44,139.88) (44,139.88)
(148,604.08) {148,604.06)
17,400.00 17,400.00
(5486,229.06} (548,229.06)
(441,398.14) (441,385.14)

(409,054.41)

1,246,888.70

(409,054.41)

1,246,889.70

837,835.29

19,270,676.61
(133,791,657}

837,8356.29

18,270,676.61

(133,791.57)

19,136,885.04

19,136,885.04

$ 1997472033 &

18.974,720.93

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services
Other receipts (payments)
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capiial and Related Financing Activities

Acquisitions of capital asseis
Proceeds from capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt

Water and
Sewer
Fund Total
% 5,126,182.21 & 5,126,152.21

Net Cash (used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on investmanis
Net Cash provided by Investing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Year
Cash, End of Year

223

Reconciliation of Operating income to Net Cash Provided by Operations

Operating income

Adiustmenis to reconcile operating income to net cash provided

by operating activites:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in:
Accaunts receivable
Inventories
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Met Cash Provided By Operating Activities

3

(1,578,658.39)
(2,618,243.79)
714,851.38

{1,578,658.39)
(2,618,243.79)
714,651.38

1,643,901.41

{1,315,526.46)
4,063,000.00

(593,939.44)
(4,573,236.44)

1,643,901.41

(1,315,526.46)
4,063,000.00

(593,939.44}
(4,573,236.44)

{2,416,702.34) (2,419,702.34}
13,060.29 13,060.29
13,060.29 13,060.29

(762,740.64)

(762,740.64)

3,643,327 .43 3,643,327.43
2,880,588.79 & 2,880,586.79
32,343.73 & 32,343.73
1,365,136.64 1,365,136.64
3,772.92 3,772.92
(59,441.93)
302,080.05 302,080.05
1,643,901.41 & 1,643,901.41

The accampanying nates are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenue
Taxas:
Real and personal property taxes
Penalty and interest
Local opticn sales tax
Beer tax
Wholesala liquor tax
Business tax
Motel tax
Cable TV
Total Taxes

Licenses and Permifs;
Beer and liquor permits
Building permits
Total Licenses and Permits

Fines and Fees;
Faes and costs
Total Fines and Fees

Charges for Services:
Other
Tetal Charge for Services

Intergovernmental:
Sales tax
State beer lax
State excise tax
Siate income tax
Mixed drinl tax
Streels and transportation
Street aid revenue
TVA payments in lieu of tax
Manchester Housing Authority
Allocation - state & local
Federal and stale granis
State 3% gas tax
Coffae County Industriat Park
Other intergovernmental

Cofiee County appropriation to Fire Dept.

Totai Intergavernmenial

Miscellansous income
Total Miscelianecus

Total Revenues

Variancs with

Final Budget
Budgstary Amounis Actual Positive
Criginal Amended Final Amoums {Negative)
4,608,384.00 3 464336400 5 456188400 5 451047412 % {51,4090.81)
65,000.00 65,000.00 £0,000.00 §2,547.82 2,547 .82
3,650,000,00 3,650,000.00 3,850,000.00 3,736,427.34 88,427.34
470,000.00 470,000.00 470,0006.00 486,813.88 16,813.88
187,000.00 197,000.00 215,000.00 220,085.78 5,085.78
250,000.00 250,000.00 200,000.00 275,884,688 75,8984.69
315,000.00 315,000.00 315,000.00 331,875.66 16,975.66
115,000.00 115,000.00 115,000.00 123,746.48 874645
9.670,384.00 9,705,384.00 $,586,884.00 9,747 95585 161,071.85
17.000.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 17,103.00 103.00
50,000.00 50,000.00 75,600.00 82,416.50 7.A16.50
67,000.00 £7,000.00 92,000.00 5951880 7.518.50
228,500.00 226,835,400 261,575.00 252,326.23 10,751,23
225,500.00 2265,825.00 251,575.00 262,328,323 10.751.23
15,000.00 17,500.00 17,800.00 16,730.10 {1,169.90}
16,000.00 17,500,00 17.800.00 16,730,410 {1,169.901
575,000.00 675,000.00 700,000.00 722,780.53 22,780.53
5,000.00 5,0600.00 5,000.00 4,780.08 {210.93)
50,000.00 50,000.00 95,798.00 85,788.32 0.32
45,000.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 85,872.08 40,872.08
40,600.00 40,000.00 40,800.00 41,7133 1,713.34
20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,673.25 673.25
180,000.00 180,000.00 180,000.00 17821712 (782.68}
116,500.00 116,500.00 112,000.00 111,785.22 (204.78}
9,600.00 10,050.00 10,050.00 10,050.00 0,00
83,000.00 83,0006,00 83,000.00 48,813.90 (@3,085.10)
0.00 £,000.00 171,925.00 42,368.84 {129,556.16)
70,000.00 70,600.00 75,000.00 82,142.59 7,142.59
57,600.00 57,600.00 57,500.00 57,800.00 0.00
180,225.00 $74,225.00 38,400.,00 35,400.00 (3,000.00
10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 G6.00
1,541,225.00 1,542,375.00 1,643,773.00 1.580,105.24 (53,667.76)
87,500.00 110,650.00 121,905.00 152,968.55 31.083.55
87,500.00 110,650.00 121,905.00 152,8688.55 31.063.66
11,609,309.00 11,668,734.00 11,714.037.00 11,828,605.47 115,568.47

{continued)
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND (continued)
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 2014

Expenditures
Gity Judge:
Retainer
Tatal City Judge

Mayor's Office:
Pearsonnel costs
Contractual services
Supplies
Total
Capital Cutlay
Totai Mayor's Office

Finance Depanment;
Parsonnel costs
Contractual services
Supplies
Tolal
Capital Outlay
Tatal Finance Department

Information Systems Department:
Parsonnel costs
Contractual services
Supplies
Total
Capital Qutiay
Tolal Finance Deparimant

Public Safety
Police Department:
Parsonnet costs
Contractual senvices
Supplies
Tatal
Capital Ouliay
Total Palice Department

Fire Depariment:
Personnel costs
Caontractual services
Suppliss
Total
Capital Cuilay
Total Fire Depanment
Total Public Salety

Public Works;
Personnei costs
Caontractual services
Supplies

Stale Sirest Aid Expendilures:

Street lighting
Street paving
Total
Capital Outiay
Total Highway and Streets

Planning and Zoning:
Personnel costs
Contractual services
Supplies
Total Planning and Zoning

Variance with

Final Gudget
Budgetary Amounis Actual Positive
Cyriginal Amended Finat Amounis {MNegative)
10,000.00 12,000.00 12,0600.00 12,000.00 .60
10,000,00 12.000.00 12,0008.00 12,000,00 0.00
182,724.00 182,421.00 177,036.00 161.128.17 15,907.83
107,000.00 107,0530.00 110,100.00 135,991 .12 {25,881.12)
17,950.00 16,450.00 18.830.00 12,931.88 5.888.01
307,671.00 305,921.00 305,9686.00 311,051.28 {5.085.28)
5,080.00 5,080.680 540.00 5,080.00 {4,540.00)
312,751.00 311,001.00 306,508.00 316,131.28 {9,625.28)
256,761.00 253,761.00 255,761.00 240,348.04 15,441,956
36,750.00 37,442.00 41,307.00 38,872.48 2,634.52
18,050.00 18,050.00 16,750.00 20,668.42 (3,818.43)
312,561.00 313,253.00 313,818.00 290,689.94 14,128.06
5,000.0G 8,000.08 8,000.08 0.00 8,000 00
317,561.00 321,253.00 321.818.00 295,689.94 20,128.06
108,885.00 110,885.00 111,5563.00 106,828,168 4,734.82
7,820,060 7,320.00 7,270.00 513674 2,133.26
8,200.00 4.700.00 3.350.00 1,230.25 2,119.75
122,905.00 122,905.00 122,183.00 11319517 8,987.83
0.00 0.00 8.00 3.000.00 {3,000.00}
122,905.00 122,905 00 122,183.00 11619517 5,987 83
2,489,602.00 2,489,692.00 2,490,182.00 2,388,709.40 100,482.6C
168,700.00 168,700.00 16%,150.00 166,022.95 3,127.08
40,050.00 40,050.00 40.000.00 55,543.85 {15,543.85)
2,698,442.00 2,608,442.00 2,686,342.00 2,611,276.20 88,065.80
52,500.0C 52,500.00 68,375.00 45,700.00 23,875.00
2,750,942.00 2,750,942.00 2.768,717.00 2.656.976.20 111.746.8B0
1,820,397.00 1,828,397.00 1,830,397.00 1,777.547.67 52,849.33
68,100.00 67,100.00 71,550.00 75,033.93 {3,483.33)
33,480.00 45,396.00 43,848.00 41,386.190 2,468,80
1,921,947.00 1,940,896.00 1.945,796.00 1,883,861.70 51,834.30
£80.000.00 578,437 00 578,427.00 583,807.00 {5,080.00}
2,5C1,947.00 2,519,323.00 2.524,223.00 2,477,468.70 46,754.30
5,252,885.00 5,270,285.00 5,292,940.00 5,134,444.80 15B.495.18
208,288.00 908,288.00 508,988.00 887,083.58 21,888.42
117,000.00 117.000.00 128,000.00 98,521.41 28,478,53
118,250.00 112,550.00 112,550.00 113.867.52 (1,317.52)
200,000,00 200,000,00 200,000.00 186,757.84 13,242.18
300,960.00 330,880.00 328,510.00 306,368.72 22,141.28
1,645,498.00 1,668,798.00 1,678,048.00 1,593,605.07 B4,442.93
13,000.00 19,700.00 25,800.00 158,885.00 {134,095.90)
1,658 498,00 1,688,488,00 1,703,848.00 1,753,600.07 {$9,882.07)
221,210.00 223,716.00 223,715.00 228,282.37 {5,572.37}
11,000.00 11,000.00 13,900.00 11,850.08 2,249,092
21,811.00 18,311.00 19,311.00 12,610.45 3,700.55
254,021.00 254,021.00 256,921 .00 253,542.80 3.378.10

{continued)
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND (continued}
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Varianoe with

Final Budget
Budgelary Amounis Actual Positive
Original Amended Final Amounts {Negative]
Expenditures, Continuad:
General Governmeant:
Personnel costs 700.00 700.00 30000 293.96 G.04
Contraciual services 344,225.00 344,325.00 358,825.00 20702719 151,797.81
Supplies 7,500.00 7,500.00 7.000.00 4,215.05 2784058
insurance 312,500.00 313,015.00 316,015.00 3059,295.00 £,720.00
Total Current 664,825,00 £65,540.00 B582,140.00 520,831.20 161,308.80
Capital Cutlay 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 G0 1.00
Total General Goverament 676,925.00 677,540,600 682,140.00 520,831.20 161,308.80
Contributians:
Current:
Caffes County Conference Centar 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 71,285.53 B,704.47
Coifee County Child Cars 2,500.00 2,500.00 2.500.00 2,506.00 .00
Coffee County Children's Advocacy Cenilgr 5,500.00 6,500.00 8,500.00 £,500.00 0.00
Library 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .00
Coiffes Counly Senior Center 2,500.00 2,500.00 2 500.00 2,500.00 Q.00
Manchester Senior Center 2.500.00 2.500.00 5,500.00 2,500.00 0.00
South Central TN Development District 2,121.00 2,121.00 2,121.00 2,121.00 0.00
South Central Human Resources 1,616.00 1,616.00 1.816.00 1.616.00 0.00
Tennassee Backroads Heritage 1,000.00 1.000.0C 1,800.00 1,000.00 0.00
Leadership Class C.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 {1,000.00}
Chamber of Commearce 12.500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 0.06
CABA $.000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Q.60 1,000.00
Vacational Training Center 11,000.00 11,800.00 11,000.00 11,000.60 0.00
Totail Contributions 136,237.00 135,237.00 135,237.00 126,532.53 B,704.47
Total Expenditures 5,740,787.00 B,782,720.00 3,833,683.00 8.532,867.82 300,725 01
Excess of
revenues over expenditures 2,868,522.00 2,877,014.00 2.880,444,00 3,296,737.48 416.283.48
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Loan proceeds 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,170,000.00 11,170,000.00
Bond premiums Q.00 Q.00 0.00 144 976,57 144,978.67
Band issuance costs 0.00 .00 0.00 (112,103.34) {112,103.34)
Capital contributions 0.0¢ 0.00 .00 153,185.00 153,185.00
Transier to General Purpose School Fund {1,678,467.00) (1,678,467.00}) (t,678,467.00) (1,878,487.00) .00
Transter to Recreation Fund {475,000.00) {475,000.00} {475.000.00) (475,000.00) 0,00
Transfer to Sanitation Fund {57,000.00) {57,000.00} {57,000.00) (57,000.00} 0.00
Transfer to Community Service {7,000.00) (7.000.00} (7,006.00) {7,000.00) 0.00
Transfer to Tourism 0.00 (126,387.00) {125,387 .00) {126,387.00) 0.00
Transfer 1o Debl Service Fund (1,446,667.00) {1,446,567.00) {1,446,667.00) (12,584,201.38) (11,147,634.33)
Total Financing (Uses) [3,564,034.00) (3,750,421.00) {3,780,421 00} {3,581 ,087.00) 208,434.00

Excess (deficiency) of
revenuss over expenditures and
other financing sources (uses}

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

(795,512.00) (813,407.00) {908,977.004 (265,249,562 §24,727.48
3,356,230.63 3,356,230,63 3,356,230.63 9,366,280.63 0.00
% 0860,71B.63 & DA400823.63 § 244625303 § 307088111 & 624,727.48

Fund Balance, End of Year 5

The accompanying netes are an integrat part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeled Amgunis Actual Posilive
Orjginal Amended Final Amounts {Negativa)
Ravenues:
Taxes:
Property tax % 242800000 § 242800000 §F 248400000 & 2,29855312 & {137,446.88)
tocal option sales 1ax 1,450,000.00 1,450,000.00 1,450,000.00 1,384,000.64 (65,898.38)
Other taxes 5,800.00 5,800.00 5,000.00 §,414.40 414.40
Total Taxes 3,881,800.00 3,881,800.00 3,850,000.00 3.686.968.18 {203,031.84)
Intergovernmental
Fedaral & State Education grants G,838,256.00 §,838,256.00 7,336,307 .40 7,378,767.33 42,4650.33
Total Intergovernmental §,838,256.00 £,834,256.00 7.336,307.00 7,.978,767.33 42,460.33
Charges for Services:
Tuition and other 160.500.00 160,500.00 143,000.00 150,200.62 7,200,662
Miscellaneous:
Gther income 23,350.00 23,350.00 £1,584.00 £3,841.90 2,347.90
Total Revenues 10,803,806.00 10,803,808.00 11,430,801.00 11,279,878.01 {151,022.94)
Expenditures:
Current:
Education:
Administration 2,357,863.00 2,357,963.00 2,528,898.80 2,5208,032.64 1,865.38
Regular education 7,243,438.00 7,243,436.00 7,428,352.00 7,286,088.68 142,262.32
Special education 1,392,281.00 1,392,281.00 1,407 573.00 1,480,711.42 18,861.58
Aflendance 130,335.00 130,335.00 102,083.00 103,873.23 {1,790.23)
Health services and olher students support 118,367.00 118,367.00 128,792.00 129,111.25 (319.25)
instructional stafi 622,102.00 B522,102.00 653,806.00 657,335.32 (3,438.32)
Plant operations 859,488.00 859,4892.00 B57,881.00 824,499 .40 33,381.680
Plant maintenance 412,567.00 412,567.00 425,835.00 510,843.58 {184,708.58)
Transporation 40,795.00 40,785.00 37.657.00 34,617.43 3,038.57
Capital outlay 1.00 1.00 182,001.00 0.00 182,001.00
Community services 217.377.00 217,377.00 203,677.00 195,219.42 5,457.58
Total Expendituras 13,394,723.00 13,394,723.00 13,957 ,645.00 13,760,033.37 187.611.63
(Deficiency) of revenues over expanditures {2,480,817.00) (2,480,817.00) {2,526,744.00) {2.480,155.36) 46,588.64
Ciher Sources (Uses) of Rascurces:
Operating transfers from General Fund 1.678,467.00 1,678,487.00 1,678,467.00 1,678,467.00 0.00
Operaling fransfers from School Capital Projecis 2,000.80 2,000.00 0.00 0.90 (.00
Total Other Sources of Resources 1.680,467.00 1,680,467.00 1,678,467.00 1,678,467.00 0.00
Exeess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendituras and other sources (uses) {810,350.00} {810,350.00} (848,277.00) {R01,688.36) 465,588,684
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 3,888,640.97 3,868,640.897 3,868,640.97 3,868,640.97 0.00
Furd Balance, End of Yaar $ 305825087 % 305820097 5 300036397 3 306895281 & 46,588.64

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance wiih
Final Budget

Budgeisd Amounis Actual Pasitive
Criginal Amendead Final AmOounts (Megative)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous 5 4370000 % 4370000 5 4570000 & 47,864.61 5 216461
Total Revenues 43,700.00 43,700.00 45,700.00 47.864.61 2,164.61
Expenditures:
Current:
General expenditures:
Program related expendituras 1,601,443.00 1,601,447 00 1,601,441.00 12,704,273.29 {11,102,832.88)
Total Expenditures 1.601,441.00 1,601.941.00 1,601,441.00 12,704,273.28 (11,102,832.29)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds 1,557,741.00 1,557,741.00 1.557.741.00 12,702,413.29 11,144,872.29
Total Other Financing Sources 1,857,741.00 1,557,741.00 1,567,741.00 12,702,413.29 11,144,872.28
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expendiiures and other financing uses Q.00 09.00 2,000.00 45,004 .61 44 004 .61
Fund Balance, Beginning of year 2,108,681.94 2,108,681.84 2,108,681.94 2,108,681.04 0.00
Fund Balance, End of Year § 210868194 & 2908681.94 & 211068194 § 215468855 & 44,804 .61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NQTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Manchester, Tennessee was incorporated in 1905. The City operates under a Mayor-Alderman form of
government and provides the following services as authorized by ils charter: public safety (police and fire
protection), public school sysiem, highways and streets, health and social services, recreation, public improvemsanis,
planning and zoning, general administrative services, and water and sewer services.

The accompanying financial stalements are presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in
the United States of America for governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
{GASB) and other authoritative sources.

Beporting Entity

The City follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entify, and GASH
Statement No. 39, Defermining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Unfis, 1o defing the reporting entity.
The financial statements include all operations over which the City is financially accountable, The City has not
identified any entities which would be component units.

Related Organizations

The City's officials are also responsible for appainting the members of the boards of other organizations, but the
City's accountability for these organizations do not exiend beyond making the appoiniment.

The following organizations are related organizations which have not been included in the reporting entity.

Manchester Housing Authority - The Board and Director of the Authority are appointed by the Mayor and Aldermen,
but the City does not provide funding, has no obligation for the debt issued by the Authority, and cannot impose its
will upon the operations of the Authority.

Manchester Arts Commission - The Board and Director of the Commission are appointed by the Mayor and
Aldermen. The Arts Commission is a Tennessee Chartered Non Profit Corporation.  Further, the City has no
obligation for any debt issued by the Commission, nor can it impose its wili upon the operations of the Commission.

Joint Venture

The City, in conjunction with the Gity of Tullahoma, appoints the Board of the Duck River Utility Commission (DRUC),
which operates a water treatment plant providing the cilizens of the two cities with water. Each city elects three of
the six member board. Neither city has any other responsibility for the Commissicn. The Gity has no equity interast
in the net resources of the Commission. Asseis of the Ulility are pledged to ihe cities {o secure indebiedness ic the
State of Tennessee which is being repaid from earnings of the Utility. The Commission reported net position of
$2,067,763 and $2,621,780 in 2014 and 2013, respeciively. Complete financial statements of the Ulility are
available at the Finance Director's office at City Hall.

Governmeni-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial staiements (i.e., Statement of Net Position and the Statement aof Activities) report
information on afl of the City's acfivities. The Staiement of Activities demonsirates the degree o which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identitiabie
with a specific function or segment. Frogram revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and
coniributions that are restricted 1o meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and
other iterns not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. The efiect of
interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial statements.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NQOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  Major individual
governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reporied as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountin

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Properiy taxes
are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar ilems are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurament focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as scon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered io be avallable when they are collectible within the current period or soon
encugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgmenis are recorded only when payment is due
in the governmental fund financial statements.

Properiy taxes, state shared revenues, and interesi associated with the current fiscal pericd are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period using the criteria
specified in the paragraph above. Al other revenue items are considerad to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmenial funds:

The General Fund is the government's primary opsrating fund. 1§ accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, excepi those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The General Purpose School Fund is used io account for the primary aclivities of the schools of the City of
Manchester.

The Debt Service Fund is used fo account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of interest and
principal on long-term general obligation debt other than payable from the Enterprise Fund.

The government reports the following major proprietary fund:
The Water & Sewer Fund accounts far the water and wastewater services provided to customers of the system.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connecticn with a
proprietary fund's principat ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Cily's enterprise fund are
charges to customers for water and sewer services. Operating expenses for the anterprise fund include the cost of
water and sewer services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and axpenses
not mesting this detinition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCQUNTING POLICIES (centinuad)

When both restricted and unrestricied resources are available for use, it is the City's policy (o use restricted
resources first, then unresiricied resources as they are needed.

Use of Estimaies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles reguires
management to make estimates and assumpticons that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

Staternent of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highiy liquid invesimenis (including restricted
assets) with a maturity when purchased of three months or less and afl iocal government investment pools to bs
cash equivalents.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include propesty, plant, equipment, and infrastructure asseis consisting of cerfain
improvements other than buildings, including roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, and drainage systems are
reported in the applicable governmenial or business-type aclivities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capiial asseis are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Al fixed assets are valued at historical cost or
esfimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated
fair value on the date donated.

The cosis of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the vaiue of the assst or materially extend assst
lives are not capitalized.

interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of husiness-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Depreciation has been provided over estimated useful lives using the siraighi-line method.

The estimated useful lives are as foliows:

tnfrastruciure (roads, bridges) 50 vears
Buildings 25-50 years
Distribution systems 10-60 years
Equipment 3-10 vears
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

As set forth in the Cily Charier, the City Councit adopts an annual budget of the General Fund, Proprietary Funds,
and Special Revenue Funds. The annual budget for the General Fund is preparsd in accordance with the basis of
accounting utilized by that fund. The budget for the Proprietary Funds is adopted under a basis consistent with
GAAP, except that certain capital expenses and non-operating income and expense items are not considered. The
City Recorder is authorized o transfer budgeted amounts within and among departments; however, any revisions
that alter the total expenditures/expenses must be approved by the City Council.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The amended budgets for the Governmental Funds are represented in the Statement of Revenues, Expendiiures
and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

Bonds Premiums/Discounts/issuance Cosis

In both Governmental Fund and Proprietary Fund types, bond discounts and issuance cosis are recognized in the
current period.

Fund Balance Classification

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications. These classifications
are comprised of a hierarchy which is established primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor
constraints on specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spanf. The
classifications used in the governmenial fund financial statemenis are as follows:

Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (&) not in
spendable form or (b) are legally or contractuailly required to be maintained intact. The City has classified certain
inventories and prepaid items as being nonspendable as these items are not expecied ic be converted o cash or are
not expected to be converted to cash within the next year.

Restricted: This classification includes amounis for which constraints have been placed on the use of the resources
either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or anabling legisiation.
The City has classified certain education monies as being restricted because their use is restricted by State Statute
for education expenditures. Additionally, the City has classified drug fund monigs as being resiricted because their
use is restricted by state statuie for police investigative expenditures.

Commifted: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. These amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the Mayor and Board of Aldermen removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of
action (ordinance or resolution) that as employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification aiso
includes contractual chligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically commitied for use in
satisfying those coniractual requirements. The City did not have any committed rescurces as of June 30, 2014.

Assigned: This classification includes amountis that are constrained by the City’s intent io be used for a specific
purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the Mayor and Board or Aldermen
or through the Mayor and Board or Aldermen delegating this responsibility to the Gity Finance Director through the
budgetary process. The City has classified monies relating to the General Purpase School Fund, Debt Service Fund,
School Federal and State Projecis Fund, School Capital Projects Fund, School Cafeteria Fund, Recreation Fund,
Sanitation Fund, Tourism Fund, and Community Policing Fund as being assigned.

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund.
The City would typically use Restricted fund balance firsi, followed by Committed resources, and then Assigned

resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right o selectively spend Unassigned resources first
to deter the use of these other classified funds.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The City is authorized to invest funds in firancial instiiutions and direct obligations of the Federal Government.
During 2014, the City invested in short-term certificates of deposit, savings accounts and other money market
accounts.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned
or the City will not be able io recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The City's policy
requires that deposits be secured and collaterized by the institutions at 105 percent of the value of the deposits
placed in the instifutions less the amount protected by federal depository. At June 30, 2014, deposits were not
axposed 1o custedial risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Investments held for longer pericds are subject io increased risk of adverse interest rate changes. The City’s policy
provides that to the extent practicable, investments are maiched with anticipated cash flows.

NOTE 3 — RECEIVABLES, UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS, AND DEFERRED REVENUES

Significant business-type receivables include amounis due from customers primarily for utility services. These
receivables are due within thirty days. Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables
for revenues that are not considered to be available io liquidate liabilities in the current period. Governmental funds

also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been recsived, but not yet earned.

Customer utility accounts receivable and customer accounts receivable at the recreation center are presented net of
an allowance for uncolleciible accounts.

Delinquent taxes receivable have been included in the combined baiance sheet with offsetiing deferred revenue to
reflect amounts which were not available at June 30, 2014, Amounts, which were available at June 30, 2014, have
been recorded as revenue.

Accounis receivable and the related allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Allowance for

Fund Type Receivables Doubtful Accounis Nst
Governmental Funds % 7,754,581.88 $ {55,000.00} % 7,899,581.98
Proprietary Funds 568,941.50 (22,.000.00) 546.941.50
Total $ 832352348 g (77,000.00) 5...8.246.523 48

NOTE 4 - INVENTORIES

Inventory of the Water and Sewer Funds, principally materials, supplies, and replacement parts, is valued at the
lower of cost, first-in, first-out, or market.

fnventory of the School Cafeteria fund consists of food and supplies and is valued at cost and recorded using the
purchase and consumption methods for fund and governmental activities statement presentation, respectively.

Inventory of the General fund, principally materials and gasoline, is valued at cost and recorded as an expenditure at
the time individual inventory items are purchased.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities

A summary of Governmental Funds property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Depreciation expense was charged 1o functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Balance Adjustments/ Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Disposals June 30, 2014
Nondepreciable capital asseis;
Land $  4,396,423.58 $ 0.00 B .00 $  4,396,423.58
Construction in Progress 545.986.61 952.488.60 (589.800.12) 1.008,575.08
5.042.410.1% 952.488.60 {(589.900.12} 5,404,998.67
Depreciable capital assets:
Building and improvemenis 27,472,613.21 0.00 0.00 27,472,613.21
Infrastructure 23,602,083.70 153,195.00 0.00 23,755,278.70
Equipment 2,596,862.30 76,472.50 (550,692.96) 2,122,641.84
Vehicles 2,950,989.11 1,276.602.00 (115,556.94) 4.112.034.17
56,622,548.32 1.506,269.50 (666.249.90) B57.462.567.92
Toial capital assets 61,664.958.51 2458.758.10 (1,256.150.02) 62.867.568.59
Accumulated depreciation:
Building and impravements (10,573,765.56) {798,008.78) 0.00 (11,372,774.34)
Infrastructure (17,251,245.86) (3156,941.13) G.60 (17,568,186.99)
Equipment (1,845,236.44) (153,797.73) 437,820.65 (1,561,213.52)
Vehicles (2.237,185.90) (231.279.09) 96.881.63 (2,.371,673.36)
Total accumulated
depreciation {31,807.433.76) (1.501.026.73) 53471228 (32.873.748.21)
Capital assets - net 28975752475 $ . 957.731.37 $ (721,437.74) § 2999361838

General Government
Police Depariment
Fire Department
Highway and Streets
Parks & Recreation
Drug Fund
Sanitation Fund
Schools

Total
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322,788.04
68,814.10
96,211.66

176,880.25

273,400.82

138,617.10
22,729.33

403.585.43
$ 1.501,026.73



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Business-type Activities

A summary of Proprietary Fund property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land
Construction in Progress

Depreciable capital asseis;

Building
Equipment
Utility plant

Total capital assets

Less acocumulated depreciation:

Building

Equipment

Utitity plant

Total accumulated
depreciation

Capital assets - net

Balance Adjustments/ Balance

July 1, 2013 Additions Disposals June 30, 2014
210,837.04 5 0.00 & 0.G0 & 210,837.04
233.,253.82 1,384.280.02 (2.000.00} 1.615.533.84
444 190.86 1,384.280.02 (2.000.00} 1.826.470.88
407,200.98 0.00 0.00 407,200.98
1,510,369.28 8,860.00 (257 ,637.00) 1,221,532.28
47,340,094.50 720,259.70 (12,319.00) 48.048.035.20
49 257 664.76 729.058.70 {309,956.00) 49 676,768.46
49.701.855.62 2.113,339.72 {311,856.00) 51,503.2359.34
(253,567.09) (6,467.34) 0.00 (260,034.43)
{1,125,722.21) (49,384.78) 147,058.55 (1,028,048.44)
(14,253,505.48) {1,309,284.52) §.400.00 {15,553,.390.00)
{15.632,794.78) {1.365,135.64) 156,458.55 {(16.841,472.87)

4§

748.203.08

$ (155,457 45)

5 3466176647

During 2014, depreciation in the amount of $1,365,136.64 was charged iv operations.

NOTE 6 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

City policy pravides for the accumulation of unused vacation. Accumulated vacation and sick leave vest with the
employee and may be taken, or paid to the empioyee upon termination or retirement.

For Governmental Fund accounting and reporting purposes, no amounts accrued at June 30, 2014 are expected to
be liguidated with expendable available financial resources; accordingly, a liability is not recorded in the fund
statemenis. Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the governmental activities and proprietary fund

financial statements,
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Governmental Activities:
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt during the 2014 fiscal year:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Retiremenis June 30, 2014
Description of debt
General Obligation Debt:
Local Government Public
Improvement Bonds-Series Z-1-A,
interest at 2% — 5.375%-General
government portion $ 11,140,000.00 § 0.00  $(11,140,000.00) § 0.00
First Vision Bank Note 196,428.58 0.00 {39,285.71) 157,142.87
Coffee County Bank Note 197,054.57 0.00 {38,285.71) 157,768.86

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2010, interest

at 4.53% - City Portion 10,605,000.00 0.60 (5,000.00) 10,600,000.00
Generai Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2013, interest

at1.25% - 3.5% 0.00 8,690,000.00 {100,000.00) 5,580,000.00
General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2014, interest

at 3% - 4% — General

government portion 0.00 1,480,000.00 (360,000.00) 1,120,000.00
Local Government Public

improvement Bonds Series Z-4-A

PBA Bonds 1,240,000.00 0.00 {110,000.00) 1,130,000.00
Sanitation Equipment Capital
Quilay Notes, Series 2008 15,000.00 0.00 {15,000.00) .00
Less oss on refunding (95,844.76) 0.00 95.844.76 0.00
Subtotal Bonds 23,297,638.35 11,170,000.00 {11,712, 726.66) 22,754,911.73
Liability For Compensated
Absences
City 1,224,774.71 0.00 {18,373.14) 1,205,401.57
Schools 554,001.71 21,297.54 0.00 575,288.25
OPEB Obligation 589,000.00 76,457.0C Q.00 665,457.00
Total Debt $ 25.665,414.81 $.11,267,754.54 $ (1.1.732,099.80) $ 25,201,069.55

General Obligation Debt is secured by the City, which is obligated to levy taxes to the exient necessary to service
this debt,
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Governmenial Activities:

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt during the 2014 fiscal year:

Description of debt
General Obligation Debt:
Local Government Public

improvement Bonds-Series Z-1-A,
interest at 2% — 5.375%-General

government portion

First Vision Bank Note

Coftee County Bank Note

Generai Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2010, interest
at 4.53% — Gity Portion

General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2013, interest
at 1.25% - 3.5%

General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2014, inferest
at 3% - 4% - General
government portion

Local Government Public

Improvement Bonds Series Z-4-A

PBA Bonds
Sanitation Equipment Capital
QOutlay Notes, Series 2006
Less loss on refunding
Subtotal Bonds
Liability For Compensated
Absences
City
Schools
OPEB Ohligation

Total Debt

General Obligation Debt is secured by the City, which is obligated to levy taxes 1o the extent necessary to service

this debt.

Batance Bafance
July 1, 2013 Additions Retiramenis June 30, 2014
$11,140,000.00 & 0.00  ${11,140,000.00) & 0.00
196,428.58 0.00 (38,285.71) 157,142.87
197.054,57 0.00 {38 285.71) 157,768.86
10,605,000.00 0.00 (5,060.00) 10,600,000.00
0.0C §,690,000.00 {100,000.00) 9,590,000.00
0.00 1,480,000.00 (360,000.00) 1,120,000.00
1,240,000.00 0.00 (110,000.00) 1,130,000.00
15,000.00 0.00 {15,000.00) 0.00
(95,844.76) 0.00 95.844.76 0.00

23,297,638.39

11,170,000.00

{11,712,726.66) 22,754,911.73

1,224,774.71 0.06 {15,373.14) 1,205,401.57
554,001.71 21,267.54 0.00 575,288.25
589,000.00 78.457.00 0.00 665,457.00
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEEBT (continued)

Business Type Activities:

The following is & summary of changes in Water & Sewer long-term debt during the 2014 fiscal year:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Reiirements June 30, 2014
Water and Sewer Fund
Water & Sewer Revenue & Tax Bonds:
Less loss on refunding % {170,036.58) 000 F 170,036.58 0.00
Local Government Public
improvement Bonds:
Series Z-1-A, interest at 3-5.375%
Water & Sewer portion 3,325,000.00 0.00  (3,325,000.00) 0.00
General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2010, interast
at 4.53% - Water and Sewsr
portion 5,585,000.00 0.00 {20,000.00) 5,545,000.00
Series Z-1-B, variable interest-
DRUC portion 2,920,000.00 (.00 0.00 2,920,000.00
Public Building Authority
of Coffee County, TN -
Utility Revenue and Tax Bonds-
Series 2006 — DRUC Portion 7.505,000.00 0.00 {290,000.00) 7,215,000.0G
Water & Sewer Revenue
& Tax Refunding Bonds —
Series 2006 705,000.00 0.00 (15,000.00) 650,000.00
General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2014, interest
at 3 - 4% - Water and Sewer
portion 0.00 3,120,000.00 (405,000.00) 2.715,000.00
SRF Loan Funding 5,674,837.00 0.00 {264,705.60) 5,410,131.40
ARRA Loan Funding 1,134,966.50 0.00 (52,840.40) 1,082,026.10
United States Depariment of Agriculture
Note Payable 92-10,
inierest at 3% 1,.315,376.55 0.00 {20,347.58) 1,285,023.01
United States Department of Agriculiure
Note Payable 91-08,
interest at 3.25% 0.00 043,000.00 (470,241,886} 472,758.14
Tennessee Public Healih
State Loan 4170.05 0.00 (4.170.05) 0.00
Subiotal Bonds 27.979,313.56 4,083,000.00 (4,897,368.91) 27,344,844.65
Liability for Compensated
Absences 258,222 85 2,894.63 0.00 261.217.78
Total Debt 5 28,237,536.41 4.065,994.83 {4,697.368.91) § 27.,606,162.43

Revenues and {ax bonds and Tennessee Public Mealth Loans are primarily obligations payable from Enterprise Fund
revenues, but in the event of a deficiency, the full faith and credit of the City is irrevocably pledged.

Receivable from the Ducic River Utility Commission (DRUC):
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

The local Government Public improvement Bonds-Series Z-1-B-DRUC Poriion and Public Bullding Authority of
Coffee County, TN - Utility Revenue and iax Bonds-Series 2006 - DRUC were used by the Duck River Ulility
Commission to construct their facilities and improvements to utility plant through an agreement with the City of
Tullahoma. As a resuli, DRUC is to be primarily responsible for the repayment of the loans. The receivable from
DRUC at June 30, 2014, amounted to $10,135,000.00.

A summary of annual bond debt service requirements at June 30, 2014 for General Obligations Debt, including
bonds and capital ocutlay notes, is as foliows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2015 3 628,571.42 N 851,600.22
2016 648,571.42 831,985.72
2017 673,571.42 811,493.68
2018 £698,571.45 786,6856.00
2018 670,626.02 766,733.82

2020-2024 3,655,000.00 3,672,003.78

2025-202¢ 4 3703,000.00 3,030,287.54

2030-2034 5,700,000.00 2,186,553.76

2035-2038 5.710.000.00 730,750.00

Total

$22,754.911.73

$ 13,568,154.52

Fiscal Year Principal Interest
2015 1,124,6802.02 955,498.10
2016 1,162,611.32 921,892.42
2017 1,196,471.61 886,152.99
2018 1,235,543.42 845,301.10
2018 1,274,828.40 803,379.35

2020-2024 7,336,311.79 3.333,372.28

2025-2029 7.,879,988.35 1,074,837.91

2030-2034 3,374,224.47 932,879.16

2035-2032 2,182,448.10 355,661.44

2040-2050 577.914.17 87,905.92
Total $ 27.344,944 65 5 11.096,981.67

A summary of annual bond debt service requirements at June 30, 20614 for Water and Sewer Fund Debt, including
bonds and loans, is as follows:

NOTE 8 — INTERFUND TRANSAGTIONS

Individual fund receivables and payables are affributed {o charges between funds that are outstanding at
June 30, 2014, and revenues collected by the Water & Sewer Fund to be paid o the Sanitation Fund. Interfund
balances are expected to be paid during the following fiscal year.

Fund Receivables Payables
Major Funds:
General Fund % 9,094.97 g 0.00
General Purpose Schooi Fund 0.00 798.84
Water & Sewer Fund 0.00 104,427.54
Non-major Funds:
Sanitation Fund 96.131.44 0.00
Total 3 105,226.38 & 105296.38
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June 30, 2014

NOTE 9 —~ FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION

A summary of changes in fund balances follows:

Transfers/
Beginning Other
Fund Balance, Excess/{Deficit) of Fund Balance Ending
as Restated Revenues over Additions/ Fund Balance
July 1, 2013 Expenditures (Deisticns) June 30. 2014
General Fund:
Nonspendable 3 80,327.42 % (15,786.03} § 0.00 3 64,541.39
Unassigned 3.275.503.21 3.312.523.51 (3.581.887.00) 3.006.438.72
Total General Fund $ 3.356.230.63 3§ 329673748 § (3.581.987.00) 5 3.070.981.11
General Purpose School Fund:
Nonspendable $ 146,823.00 % (1,803.000 % 0.00 3 144,720.00
Assigned 72,808.79 205,073.31 0.00 277,882.10
Linassigned 3.649.208.18 {2.683.325.67) 1.678.467.00 2.644.350.561
Total General Purpose
School Fund $...3.868,640.97 & (2480,155.36) §..1,678,467.00 $_3.066.952.671
Debt Service Fund:
Assigned $_.2.108.681.94 5(12.656,408.68) §12.702.413.29 $_2.154.686.55
Special Revenue Funds:
Schoot Federal and State
Projects Fund:
Restricted 3 45,685.31 3 (37,101.69) $ 0.00 5 8,583.62
School Capital Projects Fund
Assigned 476.68 0.00 0.00 476.68
School Cafeteria Fund
Nonspendabie 25,516.96 {2,082.75) 0.00 23,434.21
Assigned 209,278.17 {19,407.73) 0.00 189,870.44
Recreation Fund
Assigned 17,419.92 {333,850.28) 396,477.67 79,947.31
Sanitation Fund
Assigned 108,140.40 733.58 41,310.37 150,184.35
Drug Fund
Restricted 444 522.91 28,542.46 0.00 471,065.37
Tourism Fund
Assigned 231,891.21 {92,301.87) 112,387.00 251,676.34
Community Policing Fund
Assigned 44.647.60 (272.41) 7.000.00 51.375.19
Total Special Revenue Funds & 1,124,579.16 §  {454.840.69) $ 557,175.04 §  1,226,913.51




CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 9 — FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION {continued)

Transiers/
Beginning Cther
Fund Balance, Excess/(Deficit) of Fund Balance Ending
as Restated Revenues over Additions/ Fund Balance
July 1, 2013 Expendiiures {Deletions) June 30, 2014
Proprietary Funds;
Water and Sewer Fund $ 19,136,885.04 $ 32,343.73 $  B05.491.56 $ 18.974,720.33
Total Proprietary Funds $_19.136.885.04 3 32,343.73 5...805.491.56 & 19.974.720.33

As of these financial staiements, the City has adopted GASB Statement No. 54, which redefinad how fund balances
of the governmental funds are presented in the financial statements. Fund balances are now classified as follows:

Nonspendahle — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because they
are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the City Charter, City Code, state or
federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by the Mayor

and City Council ordinance or resolution.

Assigned — Amounts that are designated by the Mayor for a specific purpose but are not spendable until a budgst

ordinance is passed by the Mayor and City Council.

Unassigned — All amounis not included in other spendable classifications.

As discussed in Note 1, Restricted funds are used first, followed by Committed resources, and then Assigned
resources, as appropriate cpportunities arise, but reserves the right to seiectively spend Unassigned resources first

to deter the use of these other classified funds.

NOTE 10 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION

The net position for the Drug Fund, School Caleteria Fund, and certain school programs within the General Purpose
Schoal Fund have been resiricted as they are only available for use within these two funds. As of June 30, 2014, the

balances are as follows:

Drug Fund
School Cafeteria Fund
General Purpose School Fund
BEP
ESP
We Care
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471,085.37
213,304.65

208,173.00
69,668.27
5,040.83



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 11 — DEFICIT FUND BALANCE AND EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGET

The official City budget for June 30, 2014, was prepared for adoption for the General and Special Revenue Funds by
August 20, 2013. The budget was formerly adopted by the City Council after three readings at duly advertised public
meetings. The final reading was passed as amended on June 30, 2014.

The Manchester's actual expenditures exceeded the amount appropriated in the final budget. This practice is
contrary 1o state statutes, which require all expenditures of the general and special revenue funds be authorized by

the governing body.

For 2014, the following fund/departments over expended budgetary fund balances as follows:

fFund/Department Budaget Actual Overage
School Cafeteria Fund $ 234,795.13 % 213,304.65 % (21,490.48)

NOTE 12 - PROPERTY TAXES
The City's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessad value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and
personal property located in the City's legal boundaries. All City taxes on real esiaie are declared to be a lien on
such realty from January 1 of the year assessments are made.

Assessed values are estabilished by the State of Tennessee at the following rates of assessed market value:

FPubiic Utility Properiy 55%
Industrial and Commarcial Froperty - Real 40%

- Personal 30%
Farm and Residential Properiy 25%

Taxes are levied at a raie of $2.2999 per $100 of assessed vaiuation.

Payments may be made during the period from October 1 through February 28. Current tax colleciions of
$4,226,461.35 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, were approximately 95 percent of the tax levy. During March
of each tax year, delinquent taxes are iurned over io the county for collection.

NOTE 13 — RETIREMENT PLANS

Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS)

Plan Description

Employees of the City of Manchester are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessse Consolidated Retirement System
(TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are determined by a
formula using the member’s high five-year average salary and vears of service. Members become gligible to retire at
the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reducad retirernent benefit is
available to vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of
service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no service requiremant for
disability that is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

Tennessee Consclidated Retirement System (TCRS) {continued)

Plan Description

Members joining the system after July 1, 1979 become vested after five years of service and mambers joining prior
to July 1, 1979 were vested after four years of service. Benefit provisions are esiablished in state statute found in
Title 8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annoiated {TCA). Siate statutes are amended by the Tennessee
General Assembly. Political subdivisions such as the City of Manchester participate in the TCRS as individual
entities and are liable for all costs associated with the operation and administration of itheir plan. Benefit
improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision unless appraved by the chief governing body.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee Treasury Depariment, Consclidated
Retirement System, 15" Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at
http:/fwww.tn.gov/treasury/tcrs/PS/.

Funding Policy

City of Manchester requires employees to contribute 5.0 percent of earnable compensation.

City of Manchester is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; ihe rate for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2014 was 5.25% of annual covered payroli. The contribution reguirement of plan members is set by state
statuie. The contribution requirement for the City of Manchesier is established and may be amended by ihe TCRS
Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For the year ending June 30, 2014, the City of Manchester's annual pension cost of $236,299 to TCRS was equal to
City of Manchester's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the
July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost msthod. Significant actuarial assumptions
used in the valuation include {(a} rate of return on investment of present and future assets of 7.5 percent a year
compounded annually, (b) projected 3.0 percent annual rate of inflation, {¢) projected salary increases of 4.75
percent {graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of
inflation on salaries), (d) projected 3.5 percent annual increase in the Social Security wage base, and (e) projected
posi refirement increases of 2.5 percent annually. The actuarial value of assels was determinad using techniques
that smooth the effect of shori-term volatility in the market value of total investments over a ten-year period. City of
Manchester’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closad basis. The
remaining amortization period at July 1, 2011 was 18 years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of
July 1, 2011, which established contribution rates effective July 1, 2012

Trend Informaticn

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Ohbligation
June 30, 2014 $236,299 160.00% 50.00
June 30, 2013 $224,348 130.00% $0.00
June 30, 2012 $266,630 100.005% $0.00
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuariai valuation date, the plan was 26.10 percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $2.37 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $2.28 million, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (WAAL) of $0.08 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $4.24 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 2.18 percent.

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information {(RS)) following the notes to the
financial siatemenis, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan asseis are
increasing or decreasing over time relfative to the AALs for the henefits.

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial

Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuaiion Plan Assets - Entry Age {(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (& fis}) {bY — (&) {a/b) ) {(b-a)/c)
duly 1, 2013 $ 2,277 $ 2,369 $ 92 86.10% 54,235 2.18%
July 1, 2011 % 1,186 5 1,362 & 175 87.11% $3,746 4.68%
July 1, 2009 $ 119 $ 253 $ 134 47.14% $2,898 4.62%

Manchesier City Schools

The Manchester City Schools coniribute to the State Employees, Teachers and Higher Education Employees
Pension Plan (SETHEEPP), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and
disability benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. Benefits are determinad by a formula using the membey's
high five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 80 with five
years of service or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members
who are af least 55 years of age or have 25 years of service. Disability benegfits are availahle to active members with
five years of service who become disabled and cannot engage in gainiul employmeni. Thers is no service
requirement for disability that is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the
performance of duty. Members joining the plan on or after July 1, 1979 are vested after five vears of service.
Members joining prior to July 1, 1879 are vested after four years of service. Benefit provisions are established in
state statute found in Tille 8, Chapter 34-37 of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State Statuies are amended
by the Tennessee General Assembly. Cast of living adjustments (COLA) are provided to retirees each July based on
the perceniage change in the Consumer Price Index {CP1) during the previcus calendar year. No COLA is granted i
the GPl increases less than one-half percent. The annual COLA is capped at three percent.

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the SETHEEPP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Tennessee Treasury Depariment,
Consolidated Retirement System, 15" Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, Tennessee 37243-0230 or can be
accessed at www.tn.gov/ireasury/icrs/Schools.
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NOTE 13 —~ RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

Funding Policy

Most teachers are required by state statuie to contribuie 5.0% of salary to the plan. The employer coniribution rate
for Manchester City Schools is established at an actuarially determined rate. The employer rate for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2014 was 8.88 percent of annual covered payroll. The employer contributicn requirement for
Manchester Cily Schoois is established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees. The employer's
contributions to TCRS for the years ending June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $614,827, $570,011, and $562,944,
respectively, which were equal to the required contributions for each year.

Manchester Public Emplovee Retirerment System (MPERS)

Any employee participating in the City of Manchester Retirement Pian whe was a member of the Plan prior to July 1,
2002, or who was hired between July 1, 2001 and July 1, 2002 and elects to join the Plan at the first avaijlable
enrollment, and any employee of the Manchester City School Board, shall be permitted to contribute as before, and
the City will confribute to match the employse’s one (1%) percent contribution with a seven (7%) psrcent city
coniribution.

Any person, other than employees of the Manchester City Schoot Board, who began employment with the City of
Manchester on or after July 1, 2002, or any current employee who was hired betwsen July 1, 2001 and July 1, 2002
who doas not elect to join the Plan at the first available enroliment, or any empioyee not presenily in the Retirement
Plan, or who re-joins the Plan after having stopped contributing to it, shall be limited to a Gity contribution equal to
the employee’s coniribution, up to the maximum City contribution set by the fiscal year Budget Ordinance.

Deferred Compensation Plan

Upon employment, employees of the City of Manchester, Tennessee are eligible 1o contribute up to $16,500.00 (as
well as an additionat $5,500.00 if over the age of 50) to a 457(b}{6) deferred compensation pian. The City does not
match any coniributions to this plan.

Other Post Emplovment Beneidit Plan

After 30 years of service, TCRS members are eligible for retirement. If the retiree is nat eligible for Medicare, the
state of Tennessee will pay 45% of the retiree's single premium payment and the City will cover the remaining 55%
until the retiree meets eligibility requirements. This post employment benefit plan only applies to qualified employses
of the Manchester City Schools.

NOTE 14 — POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

Plan Description

The Siate of Tennessee adminisiers and participates in the Employee Group Plan and the Medicare Supplement
Plan for retired employees’ healthcare benefits,  For accounting purposes, the plans are agent multiple-employer
defined benefit OPEB plans. Benefits are established and amended by an insurance commiitee created by
Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) 8-27-201 for the state plan and TCA 8-27-701 for the Medicare Supplement Plan.
Priar 1o reaching the age of 65, all members have the option of choosing betwsen the standard or partnership
preferred provider organization (PPO} plan for healthcare benefits. Subsequent to age 65, members who are also in
the state's retirement system may participate in the Medicare Supplement Plan. That plan does not include
pharmacy.
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NOTE 14 — POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (continued)

Special Funding Situation

The state is legally responsible for contributions to the Teacher Groug and Medicare Supplement Plans that cover
the retirees of other governmental entities. The siate provides a subsidy for retired higher education and local
education agency (LEA) teachers in the plans. The siate is not the sole employer for the LEA employees since
some of these agencies provide additional direct subsidies and all provide implicit subsidies. However, the state is
the sole contributor for the vast majority of higher education teachers that particinate in the Medicare Supplement
Plan and, therefore, is acting as the employer.

Funding Policy

The premium reguirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the insurance commitiee.
The plans are self-insured and financed on a pay-as-you-go basis with the risk shared equally among the
participants. Claims liabilities of the plan are periodically computed using actuarial and siatistical techniques to
gstablish premium rates. Administrative costs of the plan are allocated to plan participants. Retired employees who
have not reached the age of 65 pay the same base premium as active employees in the plan adjusted for years of
service. Retirees with 30 years of service are subsidized 80 percent; 20 hut less than 30 years; and less than 20
years, 60 percent. Retired employees who are 65 years of age or older have flat rate premium subsidies based on
years of service. Retirees with 30 vears of service receive $50 psr month; 20 but less than 30 years, $37.50; and 15
but less than 20 years, $25.

Annual OPEB Cosi and Net OPEB Obligation — Primary Governmerit
(Dollars in thousands)

Teacher

Employee Group Plan Medicare Supplement Plan

Group Plan {State Share) State Teachers
Annual required contribution 5 81,207 3 30,355 5 11,381 ] 8,207
Interest on the net OPEB obligation 15,881 1,828 2,596 1,683
Adjustment to the ARC (15,472) {(1,781) {2.529) (1,649}
Annual OPEB cost 81,616 30,403 11,448 9,251
Amount of Gontribution (39.300) (17.947) {5,541} (5.058)
Increase in net OPER Obligation 42318 12,456 5,807 4,193
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year_ 397.024 45715 54.891 42,314
Net OPEB obligation-end of year $.439.340 5. 58171 & 70,798 §....46507

Annual Percentage of  Net OPEB
OPEB Annual OPEB  Obligation at

Year End Plan Cost Cost Contributed  Year End
06/30/2012 Employes Group $ 97,048 47%  $ 340,296
06/30/2013 Employee Group 98,166 42% 397,024
06/30/2014 Employee Group 81,616 48% 439,340
06/30/2012 Teacher Group (State) 22,545 77% 33,185
06/30/2013 Teacher Group (State) 23,725 73% 39,688
06/30/2014 Teacher Group (State) 30,403 59% 58,171
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NOTE 14 — POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (continued)

Year End
06/30/2012
06/30/2013
06/30/2014
06/30/2012
06/30/2013
06/30/2014

Plan
Medicare Supp (State}
Medicare Supp {Staie)
Medicare Supp {State)
Medicare Supp (Teachers)
Medicare Supp (Teachers)
Medicare Supp (Teachers)

Annual Percentage of  Net OPEB
OPEB Annual OPEB  Obligation af
Cost Cost Contributed  Year End
15,812 33% 41,877
16,381 28% 53,825
11,448 48% 70,798
11,780 34% 28,622
11,941 44% 35,255
9,251 55% 48,507

Annuaj OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — Component Units

{Dollars in thousands)

Empioyes i ocal Government
Group Plan Group Plan
Annual required contribution 3 41,433 & 144
Interest on the net OPEB obligation 7,380 24
Adjustment to the ARC (7.150) (23)
Annual OPEB cost 41,623 145
Amount of Contribution G (105}
increase in net OPEB Obligation 41,623 40
MNet OPERB obligation-beginning of year 184.494 527
Net OPEB obligation-end of year S 226117 ' oY 4
Annual Perceniage of  Net OPEB
OPEB Annual OFPEE  Qbligation at
Year End Plan Cost Cost Contributed  Year End
06/30/2012 Employes Group $ 49,575 67% $ 166,867
06/30/2013 Employee Group 50,084 64% 184,494
06/30/2014 Employee Group 41,623 0% 226,117
06/30/2012 tocal Government Group 215 26% 374
08/30/2013 { ocal Governament Group 121 26% 464
06/30/2014 Local Government Group 145 72% 567

Funded Status and Funding Proaress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2013, was as follows {dcllars in thousands):
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NOTE 14 - POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (continued)

Primary Government

Teacher

Employee Group Plan Medicare Suppiement Plan

Group Plan (State Share) State Teachers
Actuarial valuation date 7/1/2013 712013 7/1/2013 T/2013
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) % 855,642 $ 216,600 % 154,051 & 137,317
Actuarial value of plan assets 0 0 0 G
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) § 855,642 $ 216,600 $...154.051 § 137317
Actuarial value of assets as a % of the AAL 0 G 0 ]
Covered payroll {active plan members) 1,613,128 N/A M/A MN/A
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year 53% N/A N/A N/A

Covered payroll is N/A for the Teacher Group as the state does not have any payroll information for the participants.
The state is assuming a liability because of a special funding situation that exists between the state and the Teacher
Group Plan. Covered payrall for the Madicare Supplement plan is N/A as this plan only has retirees enrolied.

Employee Local Government

Group Plan Group Plan
Actuariat valuation date 7/1/2013 7172013
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 368,470 $ 1,400
Actuariat value of plan assets 0 0
Unfunded actuarial accrued fiability (UAAL) _ 362,470 1,400
Actuarial value of assets as a % of the AAL 0 0
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 1,445,384 5 8,773
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 26% 16%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared to past expectaiions and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress,
presenied as Required Suppiementary Information following the notes to the financial statemernts, presents multiyear
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative {o
the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumpiions

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of sach
valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial
calfculations reflect a tong-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets.

in the July 1, 2013, actuarial valuation for each plan, the Prejected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4 percent invesiment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 7.5 percent initially for the Employee Group, LLacal Government and the Local Education
plans. The rate decreases to 7 percent in fiscal year 2015 and then will reduce by decrements to an ullimate rate of
4.7 percent in fiscal year 2044, All rates include a 2.5 percent inflation assumption. The cost trend in the Medicare
Supplement plan is 2 percent initially. The rate increases to 6 percent in fiscal year 2015 and decreases
incrementally to 4.2 percent in fiscal year 2044. The unfunded actuarial accrued Hability is being amortized as a level
percentage of payroll on a closed basis over a 30 year period beginning with July 1, 2007. Payroll is assumed to
grow at a rate of 3 percent.
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NOTE 15 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Litigation and Contingancy

There were several pending lawsuits in which the City was involved, as well as certain unasserted claims and
assessments, which appear probable of assertion. The City atferney is unable, at this time, to determing the
probable outcomne of such litigation; hawever, City officiais do not believe the eventual outcome will materially atfect
the financial condition of the City.

Grants
Amounis received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by granior agencies,
principally, the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, could become a

liability of applicable funds.

Adgreement with Tennessee Valley Authorit

The City and four other water and sewer systems in the Upper Duck River area entered into agreement with the
Tennessee Valley Authority whereby the City's water system is obligated to pay monthly to TVA five cents per 1,000
gallons of water soid during the preceding month.

Contracts

During the year, the Water & Sewer Fund had $1,615,533.84 in construction in progress from various projects
refative to the water and sewer plant. The Governmental Funds reported $688,699.27 from the Tourism Fund, which
continued construction on their downtown renovation project and $319,875.82 from the Recreation Fund, which
started construction on their soccer complex and greenway extension during the fiscal vear.

NOTE 16 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Manchester is exposed {o various risks to general liability and property and casualty losses. The City
deemed it was more economically feasible to participate in & public entity risk pool as opposed o purchasing
commercial insurance for general liability, property, casualty and workman's compensation coverage. The City
participates in the Tennessee Risk Management Trust (TRMT). The City pays an annual premium to the TRMT for
its general liability and casualty insurance coverage.

NOTE 17 — RESTATEMENT

During 2014, certain matters were noted which required restatement of the prior year. During the current fiscal vear,
the City conducted a thorough review of fixed assets, resulting in a restatement in the net position of the
Governmental Activities in the amount of ($589,430.50). The Net Position of the Governmental Activities and the
Fund Balance of the School Federal and State Projects Fund were restated to record corrected beginning restricted
balances of $32,355.33. The beginning net position of the Governmentai Activities and Business-type Activities has
been restated by ($95,844.76) and ($165,781.60), respectively, to record the change in accounting principle as
described in Noite 18. Additionally, the City restated thsir accrued payables balance in the Water and Sewer Fund by
$91,303.38 to account for payables which were paid in prior fiscal years. Finally, the City restated their balance in
unbilled revenue by {$59,313.35) in the Water and Sewer Fund to account for revenues which should have been
booked in prior fiscal years.
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NOTE 17 — RESTATEMENT (continued)

Net position - beginning of year, as
previously reported
Restatements, as discussed above
Net position - beginning of year as
restated

Net position - beginning of year, as
previously reported
Restatements, as discussed above
Net position - beginning of year as
restated

Fund balance - beginning of year, as
previously reported
Restatements, as discussed above
Fund balance - beginning of year as
restated

NOTE 18 — CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

Governmential
Activilies

% 14,486,761.09
(652.919.93)

&..13.833.841.18

Business-iype
Activities

5 19,270,676.61
(133.791.57)

$_19,136,885.04

School Federal
And State

Projects Fund

5 13,325.98
32,355.33

b 45,685.33

During the audit period, the City implemented GASE Stafemnent No. 65, liems Freviously Heporled as Assefs and
Liabilities, which applies io the loss on refunding and bond issuance costs reported by the City in previous years.

As a result of implementing GASE No. 65, the City has restated previously reporied net position of Governmental
Activities and Business-type Activities for ($95,844.76) and ($165,781.60), respectively, as shown in MNoie 17.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - UNAUDITED

June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE OITY OF MANGHESTER — (TCHS)

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

July 1, 2013
July 1, 2011
July 1, 2009

Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Liability
Value of (AAL)
Plan Assets - Entry Age
{al (b)
$ 2,277 % 2,369
$ 1,186 % 1,382
$ 119 $ 253

Unfunded

AAL Funded
{UAAL) Ratio
(B} —{(a) {a/b)
5 82 96.10%
& 175 87.11%
s 134 47.14%

Covered
Payroli

)

3 4,235
$ 3,746
5 2,808

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE CITY OF MANCHESTER — (OPEB)

(Dollars in thousands}

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

July 1, 2010
July 1, 2011
July 1, 2013

Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Liahility
Value of (AAL)
Plan Asseis - Entry Age
& [is}]
5 0 3 1,000
$ 0 $ 1,863
5 0 3 1,400

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Uniunded

AAL Funded
(UAAL) Hatio
(b —(a) {a/b)
$ 1,000 0.00%
$ 1,863 0.009%
% 1,400 0.00%

Covaread
Payrolt

{©

$ 8,308
& 8,476
& 8,773

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered
Payrofi

({b-a)/c)

2.18%
4.69%
4.62%

UAAEL as a

Parcentage

of Coverad
Payroll

{{(b-a)/c)

12.04%
21.98%
16.00%
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2014

NON-MAJOR GOVERNNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds:

Schoot Federal and Siate Project Fund - To account for the various federal and state grant programs administered
by the School System.

Schoot Cafeteria Fund - To account for the caleieria operation of the City School System.

Schoot Capital Projects Fund — To account for the financial resources e be used for the acguisition or construction of
fixed assets pertaining to the schoots.

Hecreation Fund - To account for the various revenues and expenditures of the City's Parks and Recreation
Department.

Sanitation Fund - To account for the receipis from garbage collection fees and expenses related to the Cily's
sanitation department.

Drug Fund - To account for drug fines receivad and usage of those monies fo fuither drug investigations.
Tourism Fund - To account for the financial activities of the City's fourism program.

Community Policing Fund - To account for funds restricted for various police projects and purposes.

See Accompanying independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2014

Cash:

Raceivables, less allowance Tor doubtiul accounis
Due from ofher funds

Inventories
Toial Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Acerued cosis

Deferred revenue
Totat Liabilifies

Fund balance:
Nanspendable
Restricted
Assigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilifies and Fund Balance

Scheol
Federal & State Schoot School Gommunity
Projecis Capital Projecis Cafeteria Recreation Sanitation Drug Tourism Policing
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Tolal
5 5.005.62 & 476.68 & 16821363 3 4,080.28 % 163,649,583 5 47329712 3 43,848.24 5 52338.84 & 852,021.08
5254378 0.00 22 232.56 276,186.B3 o.0e 8.00 373,341.47 G.00 T24,304.62
0.08 0.00 8.00 0.00 86,131.41 0.00 0.00 .00 86.131.41
£.00 0.00 23.434.21 0.0 .00 0.00 0.00 C.00 23.434.21
3 57,540.45 3 476.68 & 21488040 § 28037712 & 188.781.00 5 473268742 § 41729071 5 §2.338.84 5 1685851.32
& 548,86 & 0.00 & 157575 & 80,371.94 5 49,596 685 & 2INTE s 18531437 5 963.65 & 310,603.77
48,418.17 0,060 0.00 46,668.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95,084.37
.00 0.00 0.00 £53.289,67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 £3,288.67
4896583 0.00 1,576.75 200,329.81 498 596.65 2,331.75 165,314.37 863.65 468 977.81%
0.00 0.00 23,434.21 0.0o 0,00 a.0e 0.00 0.00 2343421
B,583.62 000 0.00 0.co0 0.00 471,065.37 0.00 0,00 478,648.99
.00 476,68 188,870.44 74,847.231 150,184.35 0.00 251,8786.34 51.375.19 723,830.31
8,583,682 476.68 213,304,65 7884721 150,184.35 471.065.37 251.976.34 51,375.19 1,226 ,813.51
5 57.548.45 3 476.68 & 21488040 0§ 28027712 & 195,781,008 47329712 & 41728071 § 5233884 § 1,68588132

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Reposti.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Schaol
Federal & State Schaoo! School Community
Projects Capital Projects Cafeteria Recreation Sanifation Orug Tourism Palicing
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Tatal
Ravenues:
Taxes 5 nos s g.oo % 000 5 16810534 3§ 0.00 % god & 7905263 0§ 0.00 3 237.157.47
Charges for services 0,00 0.00 205,260.57 1,080,818.60 851,312.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,287,391.48
Intergovernmental 881,050.70 0.00 575,386.22 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 507,718.73 0.00 1.86¢,165.65
Investment earmings a.oe 0.00 210.58 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.0 0.00 210.58
Miscellaneous 0,00 0.00 1,000.00 414.183.53 0.00 787,146.92 0.00 32.604.86 1.244.935.41
Tolal Revenues 881,050.70 0.00 TB81.867.37 1,663,107.47 B81.312.32 B02,146.82 586,771.36 32.604.06 5,738,861.10
Expendilures:
Curent;
Education:
Program cosis 918,152.38 0,00 B03,357.85 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 1,721,510.24
Sanitation:
Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 296,206.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 206,208.36
Wasle disposal charges 0.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 594,200.12 0.00 0.00 6.00 544,200.12
Other current aperating 0.6 Q.00 0.00 0.00 100,080.26 0.00 0,00 0.00 100,080.26
Recreation:
Salaries 0.00 0.00 g.00 429,130.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 929,130.65
Other current operating 0.00 0.00 0.00 0962478 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 705,824.78
Generzl expendifures:
Program related expenditures G6.00 0.00 0.00 ¢.00 0.00 101,843,460 45,460.45 32,677.37 181,281.26
Capital outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 358.302.32 0.00 570,5661.00 632.612.78 0.00 1.661.576,10
Total Expendilures 918,152.39 0.600 03,357,688 1,887,057.75 980,578.74 772,604.48 879,073.23 32,877.37 5,183,701.7%
Excess (deficiency) of reverives
aver expenditures (37,101.69) 8.00 {21,480.48}) {333,950.28) ¥33.58 28,542.45 {82,301 87} (272.4%) {454,840.68)
Ciher Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers from other funds 0.00 8.00 4.00 488,000.00 57,000.00 a.00 128,387.00 7.000.00 B7H,387.00
Operating transfers to other funds 0,00 0.00 0.00 92,522.33) {15 688.60) 0.00 (14,000.00 .00 {122,211.08)
Total Cther Financing Soumes {Llses) 0.00 0,00 0.00 386 477.567 41.310.37 .00 112.3687.60 7.000.00 557.175.04
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
ovel expendilures (37.101.69 0.00 (21,480.48} £2,527.39 +2,043.85 28 542.48 20,085.13 G,727.59 102,334,358
Fund Balance, beginning of year, a8 previcusly reporied 13,328.98 A476.68 234,785.13 17.418.82 108,140.40 441.522,91 231.851.21 44,647 .60 1,082,223.83
Restatemant (Mote 17) 32,3585.33 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 32,355.33
Fund Balance, beginning of yaar, &s restated 45 685.31 476.68 234,785,413 17.418.82 108,140.40 441,522.81 231.691.21 44,647 .60 1.124,8570.168
Fund Balance, End of Yesr b B.5B3.62 § 476,68 5 2330465 3§ 7984731 & 150,184.35 & 471068537 & 25197634 5 51037518 5 122691351

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2014

NOTES TO BUDGET

Budageis and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

1. Prior 1o July 1, the City Finance Director submits o the Mayor and Aldermen a proposed operating budgst for
the forthcoming fiscal year commencing July 1.

2. Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through action by the Mayor and Aldermen. For budgetary
control purposes, control is established at the department level. In no event shall the total appropriations for
any fund included in the budget exceed the estimated revenues and unappropriated fund balance of that fund.

4. The City Finance Director is authorized to transfer appropriations within departments of a fund. Approval of
the Mayor and Aldermen is required to amend departmental and/or total apprepriations of any fund. All
unexpected appropriations lapse into the fund balance of the related fund at the end of the fiscal year.

5. Budgets for governmental fund types (General Fund and Special Revenue Funds) are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principies (GAAP). Budget amounts are as originally adopted
and as amended by the Board.

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

SCHOOL FEDERAL AND STATE PROJEGTS FUND

For the Year Ended Junes 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgsted Amounis Actual Fositive
Criginal Final Armounts {Megativa)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental

Revenues 5 B17.321.85 1,022,555.94 881,050.70 {1:41,509.24)

Total Revenues B17,321.85 1.022,558.94 881,080.70 {141,508.24)

Expenditures:

Current:

Education:

Program costs:

Teachers 242,883.05 246,110.38 247,025.30 {914.82)
Educational assistance 274,845.00 274,845.00 252,028,25 22,816,758
Clher salaries 78,131.00 79,131.00 78,276.18 B854.82
Benefits 260,639.00 261,580.00 228,468.20 33,081.80
Instructional supplias and materials 180,083.23 187,861,338 65,063,609 132,787.70
In-service and staff development 60,778.48 51,231.48 47,290.77 3,940.71
Capital outlay 7.504.00 14,095.64 0.00 14.055.84

Total Expenditures 1,105,9590.78 1,114,785.09 918,152.39 198,632.70

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (288,668.91} (92.285.15) (37,101.69) 55,123,468

Other Sources of Resources:

Transfers 0.00 40,930.84 0.00 {40,530.84}
Total Other (Uses) of Resources 0.00 46,930.84 .00 {40,830.84}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendilures and other sources (uses) {288,668,91) {51,284.31) {37,101.68) 182.62
Fund Balance, beginning of year, as praviously reported 13,328.58 13,325.88 13,329.58 G.00
Restaternent 0.00 0.00 32,355.33 32,385.33
Fund Balance, beginning of year, as resiated 13,320.98 13,325,068 45,685.31 32,355.33
Fund Balance, End of Yaar 5 (275,338.83) (37,554.33) B,583,62 46,547.85

See Accompanying Independent Auditors® Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SCHOOL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Amended

Variance with
Final Budgst

{MNegative)

Revenues:
Grarits S

0.00

@

0.80

8.00

Total Revenues

0.08

0.00

0.00

Expenditures:
Currant:
General expenditures:
Program related expenditures

0.00

Total Expenditures

0.00

Excess [deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Fund Belance, Begirning of Year

0,00

0.00

Fund Balance, End of Year &

L]

4,00

Ses Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.



CiTY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SCHOOL CAFETERIA FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Burlget
Budgeted Amounis Actuad Positive
Original Amanded Final Amounis {Negative}
Revenuas:
Intergovernmental:
USDA 5 533,600.00 & 53350000 3 533,500.00 § 75,396.22 5 41,896.22
State maiching 8,400.00 8,400.00 8,400.00 5,035.00 (365.00)
Charges for services:
Student lunches 154,000.00 154,000.00 15:4,000.00 118,510,718 {35,468.82)
Studsnt breakfast 12,500.00 12,500.00 12,500.00 11,206.88 (1,213.12)
Adult iunches 20,500.00 20,500.00 20,500.00 15,794.91 {4,705.08)
A la carte meals 54,000.00 54,000.00 54,000.00 51,838.60 (2,386.40)
Miscelianeous 4,500,00 4,500,060 4,500.60 1,000.00 {3,500.00)
Uses of money and properly - inlerest income 240.00 240.00 240.00 210.58 {25.42)
Total Revenues 787,640.00 787.640.00 787.640.00 781,867.37 {5,772.63)
Expenditures:
Currant:
Program costs:
Food Sarvice:
Food 291,270.56 291,270.56 291,270.56 336,853.19 (45,362.83)
Labor 296,902.01 296,902.01 2896,802.01 £50,405.33 5,496.68
Fringe beneiils 134,878.01 134,878.91 134.878.91 123,792,067 11,088.84
Supplies 31,279.38 31,270.36 31,279.36 2996215 1,317.21
Transportation 388.10 388.10 398.10 398.10 0,00
Other 32,911.08 32,911.06 32.911.08 22,147,014 10,7684.05
Total Expenditures 787.,640.00 787.640.00 787.640.00 803,357.85 {15.717.85)
Excess (deficiency) of revendes over expenditlures G.00 0.00 0.00 (21,480.48) {21,490.48)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 234,78513 234,795.13 234.785.13 234,785.13 0.00
Fund Balance, £nd of Year 5 234,78513 & 23479513 & 234,78513  § 213,304.85 8 {21,490.48)

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
RECREATION FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with

Finel Budgst
Budgeled Amounis Aciual Positive
Criginal Amended Final Amounds {MNegative)
Revenues:
Intergovarnmenial
Foom occupancy tax 5 14500000 & 145,000.00 145,000.00 158,105.34 13,105.34
Grants 350,000.00 545,000.00 554,775.00 398,087,586 {156,687 .44)
Charges for service:
Membership fees and dues 81:4,000.00 514,000.00 814.,000.00 757,533.68 (56,466.32)
Concessions 200,000.00 200,006.00 200.900.00 157.26017 (432,735.83)
Activity fees and charges 188,500.00 188,500.00 186,500.00 176,024.75 {12,475.25)
Miscellaneous 8,000.00 10,100.00 14,500.00 16,085.97 1,195.87
Total Revenues 1,705,500.00 1,802,600.00 11717500 1,863,107 .47 {254,067.53}
Expenditures;
Currant:
Salaries and employee benefits 831,117.00 ©31,3886.00 937,327.00 829,130.65 8,186.35
GContract services 396,000.00 386,400.00 407,400,060 355,578.34 51.,821.86
Supplies 127 500.00 127,500.00 127,500.00 106,563.88 20,936.12
Cther 249,331.00 446,504.00 487,204.00 230,823.28 226,380,742
Gapital oullay 371,000.00 371,000.00 371,000.00 374,961,682 {3.981.62)
Total Expendituras 2,074,948.00 2.872,770.00 2,300,431.00 1,987,057.75 303.,373.28
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendilures (369,448.00) {370,170.00) {383,255.00) 1333,8950.28) 4830572
Ciher Sources of Rescurces:
Transfer to Debt Service Fund (95,478.00) (95,478.00) {95,478.00} (92,522.33) 2,955.67
Operating transfers from Tourism Fund 0.0¢ 0.00 0.00 14,000.00 14,000.00
Operating transfers from General Fund 475,000.00 475,000.00 475,000.00 475,000.00 0.00
Total Other Sources (Uses) of Hesources 378,522.00 378,522.00 378,522.00 396,477.67 16,858.67
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) 10,674.00 5,352.00 {3.734.00) £52,527.39 £43,261.38
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 17.418.92 17, 418.82 17.4158.92 1741992 .60
Fund Balance, £nd of Year g 27,493.82 26771.88 13,685.92 79,847 31 £56,261.39

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCGE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
SANITATION FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with

Hevenues:
Charges for services:
Garbage fae 5

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Gurrent:
Salaries and employee henelits
Waste disposat charges
Other current aperating

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver expenditures

Other Financing Scurces (Uses):
Transfer 10 Debt Service Fund
Operating transfers from General Fund

Total Other Financing Sources

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expendituras and other financing uses

Fund Balance, Beginning of year

Final Budgeat
Budgeted Amounts Actua! Fositive
Criginal Amended Final Amounts {Negative}

H 93220000 & 935,200.00 & 94520000 3 991,312.32 & 45,112.32
932,200.00 §35,200.00 945,200.08 991,312.32 46,112.32
337,971.00 337,971.00 337.871.00 296,288.36 21,672.64
529,414.00 528,414.00 528,414.00 594,200.12 {54,786.12)
119,500.00 118,500.00 118,300.00 100,080.26 18,218.74
0B6,885.00 §86,885.00 985,885.00 890,578.74 {4,893.74)

(54,688.00) {51,685.00) (40,485.00) 733.58 41,21B.88
{15,696.00) {15,696.00) (15,558.00) {15,689.63) 5.37
57,000.00 57,000.08 £57,000.00 57,000.00 0,00
41,304.00 41,304.00 41,304.00 41,316.37 6.37
(13,381.00) (10,381.00) 819.00 42,043.95 41,224.95
108,140.50 108.140.40 108.140.40 108,140.40 108,140.40

& 94,759.90 § 0775840 & 108,859.40 & 150,184.36 & 148,365.35

Fund Balance, £nd of Year

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
DRUG FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with

Revenuas:
Miscellaneous:;
Pregram revenue

Total Revenues

Expsndituras:
Current:
General expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefils
Drug related

Capital outlay
Tolal Expendilures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounils Actual Pasilive
Original Amended Final Amounis {Negative)

5 205,000.00 & 23500000 & 220,000.00 % B02,146.92 3 583,146.82
205,600.00 235,000.00 220,000.00 802, 146.92 582,146,892
23,000.00 23,000.00 38,420.00 8.00 38,420.00
82,500.00 82,850.00 £89,350.00 86,776.15 {7,426.15)
102,500.00 102,500.00 102,500.00 G75,828.31 {573,328.31}
208,000.00 208,350.00 230.270.00 T72.604.46 (542,334.46)
{3,000.00) 26,650.00 (10,270.00} 20,542,456 3881248
441,622.81 441,582.91 441,528.91 441,532.91 0.00

5 43852281 5 48817291 § q31,862.91 % 47106537 3 38,812.46

Fund Balance, End of Year 5

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND AGCTUAL
TOURISM FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budgs!
Budgeted Amounis Aciual Pasitiva
Original Amended Amounis {Negative)
Ravenuas:
Taxes:
Maotal tax & 75,000.00 75,000.00 78,052.83 4,052.63
Grant revenueg 478,360.00 984,405 00 B507.718.73 {478 686.27)
Total Revenuzs 551,360.00 1,058,405.00 586,771.36 (472 633.64)
Expenditures:
Current:
Program related costs 666,150.00 1,300,081.00 575,073.23 635,007.77
Total Expenditures 668,150.00 1,300,081.00 579,073.23 835,007.77
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer io Recreation 0.90 0.00 (14,000.00) {14,000.00)
Transfer from Genaral Fund 0.C0 126,387.00 126,387.00 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources 0.60 126,387.00 112,387.00 0.00
Excass {deficiency} of revenues over expendilures {116,790.00) {114,283.00) 2008513 162,374.13
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 231,801.21 231.881.21 231.891.21 0.00
Fund Balance, End of Year 5 115,101.21 117,602,381 251,976834 & 162,374.13

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY POLICING FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Posilive
Original Amended Final Amounis {Negative)
Hevenuas:
Miscellaneaus i 3800000 & 35000400 & 3600000 § 32.604.98 & {3,395.04)
Toial Revenues 36,000.00 36,000.00 36.000.00 32,604.98 {3,595.04)
Expenditures:
Current:
General expenditures:
Program related expenditures 43,000.00 43,250.00 47,250.00 32,877.37 14,372.63
Total Expenditures 43,000.00 43.250.00 47,250.00 32,877.57 14.372.63
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from General Fund 7,000.00 7.000.03 7.000.00 7.000.00 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources 7,000.00 7.000.00 7.000.00 7.,000.00 0.00
Excass (deficiency) of revenues and aiher financing
sources over expenditures and other financing uses 0.00 (250.00) (4,250.00) 6,727.59 10,977.59
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 44,847.80 44,647.60 44.647.50 44.647.60 0.00
Fund Balance, End of Year 3 44,647,680 & 4439760 § 40,39760 8 51,375.19 8 10,877.58

See Accompanying independent Auditors' Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASGISTANCE

Federal Grantor/ CFDA Contract
Pass-Through Grantor Number Number Expenditires
Federal Awards
US Department of Agriculiure 10.760 NIA B 57,130.00
US Deparment of Agriculture 10.760 NIA 943,000.00
Total Program 10.760 $ 1,000130.00
US Deparment of Transporation 20.205 100098 k) 505,218.73
US Depanment of Transportation 20.205 100183 14,283.93
Total Program 20.205 § 519,502 .66
US Depariment of Agriculture 10.555/10.553 N/A § 575,396.01
US Depariment of Education 84.010 N/A 395,408.00
US Depariment of Education 84.027 N/A 396,564.76
US Depariment of Education B4.173 N/A 48 578.24
US Depariment of Education 84.358 N/A 26,871.00
US Department of Education 84.365 MIA 23,506.00
US Depariment of Education B4.367 N/A 56,247.00
US Department of Educalion 84.374A N/A 461 505.68
US Department of Transportation 20807 Z1AGHS215 28,084.91
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS - NON - ARRA & 2,042161.61
Federal Awards - ARRA
US Department of Educatlion 84,395 MNIA i 13,350.00
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS - ARRA $ 13,350.00
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS % 3,575,144.27
State Financial Assistance

TN Department of Enviomment and Conservation NIA 3270101683 % 103,087.56
TN Depaitment of Health N/A GG-14-38502 15,000.00
TN Department of Health A GG-14-38532 150,000.00
TN Bepardment of Commerce and Insurance WA - 2G,400.00
TN Depariment of Commerce and Insurance M/A - 15,000.00
TN Department of Education NIA - 8,035,060
TN Department of Education MN/A - 6,248 ,000.00
TN Department of Education MNIA - 277.455.00
TN Department of Education NIA - 10,000.00
TN Department of Education N/A - £8,120.00
TN Departmant of Education N/A - 83,100.84
TN Department of Educaton N/A - 7,000.00
TN Department of Education N/A - 87,833.29
TN Department of Education N/A - 3,749.83
TN Depariment of Education N/A - 1,081.20
TN Deparment of Education N/A - 3,488.13
TN Depariment of Educalion N/A - 59,223.30
TOTAL STATE AWARDS 5 7,160,574.15
TOTAL FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS $ 8,202,735.76

Note: The accompanying Sechedule of Expendilures of Federal Awards and Siate Financial Assislance summarizes the
expenditures of the City of Manchesler under programs of the federal and state govemments for the year ended June 30,
2014. The schedule is presenied using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF TRANSFERS

Transter fram General Fund to Sanitation Fund

Transfer fram General Fund to Recreation Fund

Transfer from General Fund to General Purpose School Fund
Transfer from General Fund to Debt Service Fund

Transfer from General Fund to Community Policing Fund
Transter from General Fund to Tourism Fund

Transfer from Recreation Fund to Debt Service Fund
Transfer from Sanitation Fund to Debt Service Fund

Transfer from Tourism Fund fo Recreation Fund

Total Transfers

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Repori.
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§ 57,006.00
475,000.00
1,678,467.00
12,584,201.33
7.000.00
126,387.00
92,522.33
15,689.63
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY - GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT

Locat Government Pubfic

General Obligation Refunding General Obligation Refunding General Obligatien Retfunding Improvament Bonds

Fiseal Bonds, Series 20180 Bonds. Series 2013 Bunts, Series 014 Firsl Viston Bank Caflee County Hank Setice 2-4-4 PRA Bonds Tglal
Yert Pringipal literasi Principal Intaras Principal Intosasl Principal Iniarest Principal Interast Princinal Interesd
215 5 10,000.00 = 493,905.00 8§ 5500000 & 28248126 % 500000 S ardseco s 828871 § 660448 3 3328571 8 68544 5 12060800 s 4406000 = 620,571.42 5 55168027
208 10,000.00 #93,705,00 55.000.00 261,793.78 FI70,000.00 26,500.00 36,285,714 5.360.98 39,285.71 536058 135.000.00 310,255.00 648,571.42 d31985.72
2M7 H,000.00 483 467.50 55.000.00 261,106.26 I65,006.00 15,400,008 39,285.71 3,827.45 38,285.71 3827.48 145,000.00 33,085,628 B7SAT.42 £11,483.68
2018 106,000.60 443,205.00 4%0,000.00 268,410.75 000 n.oo 34,285.74 230237 39,285.71 2.302.37 160.000.00 28.427.50 640,571.45 786,656.00
Zma 105,000.00 492,930.00 485,000.60 251,418,756 400 0.00 0.8 0.08 626.07 37 56 175.000.00 23,347.59 670,625.62 TEG,733.82
2028 H3.060.00 492,630.00 480,000.00 24171876 .00 o.oo 0.00 o.0h .00 400 120,000,080 15.610.00 B60,860.00 749.858.75
2021 10,000.00 492 305.00 485,000.00 252,418.78 0.50 0.00 6.00 G.00 oo 050 205,000.00 8,200.00 716,0060.60 7iL8Z3T8
2022 10,000.60 481,080.80 T25.000.00 221,600.00 4.00 o.oo [eR14] 0.0 0,00 D40 .00 0.00 735,000.00 713,580.00
2023 10,000.00 481.655.00 745,000.00 206,287.50 4.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 G.oo a.00 .04 735,600.60 686,942.58
2024 10,000.60 431,384.00 765,000.00 187,583,756 4.060 0.00 0.08 G.00 .08 G.00 0.00 0.00 775,000,600 678,598.75
2025 16,000.00 490,905.00 505,800,506 166,556.26 4.00 .00 0.08 0.60 .00 o.co 0.00 0.00 B15,600.G0 BETA6B1.26
2026 10,000.00 490,505.00 J30.000.00 142,406.25 a.00 0.00 BRili] 0.00 .00 {400 .00 0.00 B40,660.60 532,911.28
027 10,000.00 488,105.00 850,000.00 147,506,256 a.00 0.00 0.8 0.u0 Gc.on 0.60 0.00 6.00 870,608.66 807.611.25
2028 10,000.00 488,785.00 595,000.00 40,631.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.00 6.00 .00 505,(060.60 55€,336.26
2028 10,000.00 489,385.00 936,000.00 62,662.50 .00 0.00 0.0 o.0a 0.0a D00 .00 6.00 540,000.00 H551,957.50
2830 10,000.00 480,885.00 560,000.00 33,600.00 000 n.oo 0.00 000 0.0 4.00 a.a0 0.on §70,000.C0 572.465.60
2031 1,115,000.08 ABE 465.00 0.0 .00 .00 0.00 0.0a .00 0.00 oo 000 0.00 1,115,000.00 458 465.09
203 {,155,080.00 441,635,060 0.06 .08 O.00 oo 6.08 0.6 0.08 080 0.00 000 1.155,600.00 441,635,000
2033 1,195,000,00 383.125.00 0.00 800 ©.00 0.01 0.0a .08 0.00 0.00 .04 .00 +,185,000.60 393,125.00
20354 1.265,0080.00 348,843.75 0.00 .00 .00 o.eo 0.0 o0.00 0.0 e 5.00 .00 1.263.000.00 J48,643.78
2035 1,130,080.00 285,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 oo 0.08 000 o.00 D.oo 0.00 .00 3.3306.000.00 285,500,06
2036 1,380,000.00 213,000.80 a.00 .60 0.00 n.oe 8.00 0.60 0.0 0.00 0.00 G408 1.350.000.00 249,060,606
2037 1,475,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 0G0 060 .08 0.8 LiXHI} o.on 0.00 0G0 400 7.475,000.00 150,060.60
2038 1,525,080.00 78.258.00 0.00 .60 000 4.0 0.60 .60 5.00 0.00 080 4.60 1,625 00a.00 73,250.60

s 1060000000 5 1026131626 & 9.530,000.00 5 2,895 800,12 3 112000000 & 7635000 % 157 442,57 § 15.305.20 % 1B7.768.85 % 1842285 3§ 113000000 8 181 7HG.00 3 2278481173 5 13,5AH, 16482

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Repori.
66



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY - WATER AND SEWER FUND (REVENUE & TAX BACKED) DEBT

Lagal Gevernment Puplic

Water & Gewer

Water & Sower

General Oblgration Retunding Impluvement Bends Revenue & Tax Refunding Bands Revenut 6 Taw Refunding Bends Gereral Qtkgatisn Refunging SRF Loan ROA Bongt ROA Bonds
Fiscal Bands Seties 2014 Series T -5.DAUCH Seting 2006 - ORUC Seties TGS Bongs Beres 7314 Harins 3011 Serins 2311 Senas T4 Tatals
Year Prinvigal Interest Fiincraal Entpepst Frincipal Interest Fracipal Prngipal intztest Prinaipa Inferest
AME 3 Wo0e.00 3 FUELOG.GE 4003 2 MERB0O6 § I5.6P000 5 G, i 1500045 % 41084060 5 WDOZG00D % 3AGTEED S z 38,580,430 2510035 W2438E & 1123800.07 ‘
016 20,800.00 207 ED0O% .08 146,250.00 215.500.68 15.000.00 43d0e0.00 §7,800.00 331.658.60 30,030.40 EEMERR 13.550.41
a7 20,000.00 DT ARE00 0.64 126.250.06 32560060 TEO00.G A4S 040.00 7E.603.00 338 EY0.ED 3.277.48
2018 20,000.00 205 s00.00 068 146, os 34000055 $5.000.00 460,060.00 B7200.00 46,265 3¢ 36.601.34
s Q0504 .80 45, 150.000.G0 A0.000.60 000 BID.Z0
2020 20,0040 20545000 [.60 37500060 20.000.80 19,8105 1.E57.60
204,800.60 0.60 20.004.60 a.00 5445 20
noa 2060060 2.0a 377504
0.05 20.000.00 0
0.00 50.08 435,600 20.000.00 og
0.64 455,000,605 20.000.00 4.0a EREREH
n.ao A55.000.67 25.000.00 B
n.4n A85.000.05 22.000.0D 1,747.%
arangnge 0.60 51000060 7780000 25.000.09 1.750.53
GGO n.go BIED00.ER L& SR0.0D 2500000
[eRHe] 0.a9 53500060 J0.000.00
.00 040 YO EDD.0D 40.000.60
Gog 458,000.00 o.on 20.000.00
n.ga 375.000.00 20.000.04
2] A06.008.00 110,000.00 IENT0.00
0.on 425.000.09 §0.00000
2400 A53,008.00 FEG.00
o.00 A8e 00C.0d 245000
a.4an ATG.05L.060 237E000
0.4an i ehi) &ng 4D 6o
b.oo G.GU [elliis) £0.6G0.0D
a.4an o &0 G.oa
aon [elth) a.m [LXvh]
a.09 2o &0 f.ua
040 5.60 S627.71
a.oa ong 503473
oo 652108
4.40
BGG

304

&.09

3 7.21500;

L8N GOG 0 5

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report,
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN PROPERTY AND UTILITY TAXES RECFEIVABLE*

Adjustments

Balance and Balance
July 1, 2013 Levy GCollections June 30, 2014
Tax
Year
2014 % 0.00 % 4,616,283.49 {(4,305,671.18) 5 310,812.31
2013 262,788.09 0.00 (145,285.89) 117,502.20
2012 95,648.75 0.00 (68,700.83) 26,947.92
2011 34,087.84 0.00 (19,446.52) 14,641.32
2010 21,509.28 0.00 (10,886.23) 10,623.05
2009 12,876.40 0.00 (531.80) 12,344.80
2008 5,667.84 C.00 (371.47) 5,196.37
2007 5,881.45 0.00 {648.66) 523279
2006 825.80 0.00 (215.37) 610.43
2005 521.12 0.00 (215.37) 305.75
2004 and thereafter 2,863.80 0.00 0.00 2,863.80
Total 5 442,670.37 & 4,616,283.49 (4,551,873.32} 506,980.54
Add: 2014 Tax Levy 4,650,466.44

*Taxes become delinquent in March of the year following the tax year of levy. Delinquent taxes are
turned over to the County Clerk and Master for collection proceedings.

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX RATES AND ASSESSMENTS

Year Rate
2014 2.2999
2013 2.2999
2012 2.2999
2011 2.2999
2010 2.2999
2009 2.42
2008 2.42
2007 2.42
2006 2.62
2005 2.77
2004 2.77

Valuations
193,886,292
182,531,402
190,954,294
190,664,264
191,649,581
178,974,121
170,798,164
166,346,338
158,593,260
133,848,245
128,070,916

Assessment

4,458,191.26
4,428,030.27
4,391,758.88
4,385,088.35
4,407,749.61
4,331,182.14
4,133,323.84
4,025,589.85
4,181,351.68
3,707,601.39
3,547,569.52

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE

Insurer Risk Covered

Property coverage
Builders and personal property - per schaedule
Contractors equipment ($1,000 deductible)
Equipment media/Software ($250 deductible)
Auiomatic coverage
Extra expense — per occurrence
Valuable papers and records — per oceurrence
Food and surface water — pool aggregate (51,000 deduciible)
Earthquake — pool aggregate {$1,000 deduciible)
Properiy in transit
Fine arts
New construction — Builders' risk
Poliution clean-up and removal

Crime coverage
Fidelity — each loss

Loss insidefioss outside — each loss
Money orders and counterfeit — each loss
Depositors forgery — each loss
Deductible

Worker's compensation and employer’s liabjlity
Bodily injury by accident — each accident
Bodily injury by disease — policy limit
Bodily injury by disease — each employee

Public official errors and omissions
Lirnit per occurrence {$2,500 deductible)

Employee benefits liability
Limit — each claim
Per member annual aggregate

General liability coverage

Bodily injury and property damage - general aggregate

Bodily injury and property damage — each occurrence
Products/Completed operations aggregate

Personal and advertising injury — no aggregate

Damage 1o premises rented to you

Medical expense

Law enforcement liability — each occurrence (52,500 deductible)

Automobile liability coverage
Bodily injury/Property damage — each occurrence
Hired/Non-owned
Medical payment — ($5,000 per parson)
Comprehensive and collision deductible

{coniinued)
69

Amount of
Coverage

Blankest
500,000
1,000,000
Various
$ 5,000,000
% 1,000,000
$ 25,000,000
% 25,000,000
100,000
500,000
500,000
25,000

o €A

o i 5 £

150,000
150,000
150,000
150,000

500

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

o5 & 5

& 1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

pos PSS

No aggregate limit
$ 1,000,000

Mo aggregate lmit
1,000,000
Policy limit

L.egal liability only
$ 1,000,000

1,000,000
1,600,000
100,000
1,000

£ L 5 1R



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE IN FORCE (continued)

Boiler and machinery

Property damage {$5,000 deductibie) $ 21,448,443
Expediting expense % 500,000
Spoilage damage $ 100,000
Litility interruption damage & 100,000
Ordinance of iaw $ 500,000
Ammonia contamination $ 500,000
Hazardous substances $ 500,000
Water damages $ 100,000
Combined deductible $ 5,000

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF UTILITY STATISTICAL DATA

Within Corporate Limils:

Up te and including 2,000 gallons
Next 98,000 gallons

All over the next 100,000 galions
Unmetered Residential Customers

Outside Corporate Limiis:
One and one-half times inside rate - Industrial
Two times inside rate - Residential and commercial

Wailer & Sewer Customers
6/30/2014

Water

Sewer

$8.60 Mirimum
$4.30/1000 gal.
$3.42/1000 gal.

Water

$10.82 Minimum
$5.41/1000 gal.
$4.30/1000 gal.
$25.74 Minimoum

Sewer

6,912

See Accompanying independent Auditors’ Report.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BY DEPOSITORY - ALL FUNDS

Pooled Cash Account
Demand deposiis accounts

General Purpose Schoot Fune:
Cash on hand
Dermand Deposit Accounts
Toial General Purpose School Fund

Recreation Fund
Cash on hand
Demand deposits accounis
Total Recreation Fund

Other Scheol Special Revenus Funds
Demand deposit

Water & Sewer Fund:
Cash on hand
Demand deposits
Tolal Water and Sewer Fund

Tolal Cash and Equivalents

First Coffee Peoples U. s First Regions Balance
National County Bani & Trust Bank Vision Banl¢ Other June 30, 2014
§ 4,066476.10 % 632,090.07 % 2,008871.34 % 0.00 & 2,120,379.75 & 0.00 % 1,150.00 % 9,128,867.26
4,868,4765.10 £32,090.07 2,006,871.34 0,00 2,120,378.75 0.00 1,150.00 8,128,967.26
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 50,00
53,104.80 0,00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 53,104.80
53,104.80 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.0C 0.00 50.00 53,154.80
0.0 G.Co 0.0¢ 0.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 750.00
0.00 0.00 177,102.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 177,102.28
0.00 0.00 177,102.28 (.00 0.0 0.00 750.00 177,852.28
0.00 168,488,33 0.00 0.00 0.00 (.00 714,30 169,213,683
0.00 168,488,33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 714.30 169,213,683
0.0¢ .00 0.06 0.00 .00 0,00 1, 14711 1,147,114
5,184.03 3,137.,40 1,170,784.86 480.74 0.00 4,859.06 5,328.67 1,189,774,B6
5,184.03 3,137.40 1,170,784.96 480.74 0.00 4,859.08 8,475.78 1,180,821.97
5 442676493 § BO3,72R.80 § 3,354,758.58 § 480,74 2,120,379.75 & 485906 % 914008 &% 10,720,109.94

7E

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.



CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2014

REPORTING WORKSHEET - UNAUDITED
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2014

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - UNAUDITED
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Bran, Ruoron & KeLLey, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANGCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Manchester, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
ihe standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Gomptroller
General of the United States, the financial statemenis of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, sach
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Manchester, Tennessee, as of and for the year
ended Jume 30, 2014, and the related notes io the financial statemenis, which colleciively comprise City of
Manchester, Tennassee's basic financial staterments and have issued our report thereon dated March 30, 2015, Our
report was modified due to a fundamental lack of internal control over capital assets.

internal Gontrol Over Financial Reporting

In ptanning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Manchester, Tennessee's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropnate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Manchester, Tennessee's internal conirol. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Manchester, Tennessee’s internal controk.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not idenfified. However, as
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified ceriain deficiencies in intemal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal confrof exists when the design or operation of a controi doss not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of perfarming their assigned functions, to preveni, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internai
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that & material misstatement of the entity’s financial statemeantis will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses [2012-001].

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, vet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider ihe
deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findings and guestioned costs to be significant deficiencies
[2006-003 and 2013-001].

300 Sauth Jeflerson Streer, Wieheswer, TN 3 Hiv O6HD & Py 031067 4741
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Compliance and Other Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Manchester, Tennessee's financial statemenis are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulis of our tests
disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and qusstioned cosis as items [2006-
001, 2013-002, and 2014-001].

City of Manchester, Tennesseg’s Hesponses to Findings

City of Manchester, Tennessee’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Manchestar, Tennessee’s responses ware not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the eniity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards

in considering the entity’s internal controt and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

TPope 1 sle. K, P

Winchester, Tennessee fn!k
March 30, 2015
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Brean, Ruoton &

Certified Public Accountants

LiEy, PLLC

INDERPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Manchester, Tennessee

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Manchester, Tennessee’s compliance with the types of compiiance requirements described
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplemeni that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of
Manchester, Tennessee's major federal programs for the vear ended June 30, 2014. City of Manchester,
Tennessea’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's resulis section of the ascompanying
schedule of findings and questioned cosis.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and granis
applicable to its federal programs,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Manchester, Tennessee's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referrad 1o above. We conducted cur audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable {o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Gircular A-133, Audifs of States, Local Governmenis, and Non-Frofit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the fypes of compliance requiremenis referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
City of Manchester, Tennessee's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for sach maior federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Manchester, Tennessee's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Manchester, Tennsssee, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on sach of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2014,

Other Matters

The resulis of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance which are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Members ol A



Heport on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Manchester, Tennessee, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
conirol over compliance with the types of compliance requiremenis referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered City of Manchester, Tennessee's internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumsiances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internat control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Manchester, Tennassee's internal conirol
over compliance,

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a conirol over compliance does
not aliow management or employees, in the normal course of perfarming their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
maierial weakness in internal conirol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompiiance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control aver compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed o identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exisi that have nol been identified.

The purpose of this repori on internal conirol over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the resulis of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Gircular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

| AUUE\\,NPV_@( : Ve g, \v«l -

Winchesier, Tennessee B

March 30, 2015
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

June 30, 2014

Financial Statement Findinas

Finding Numbers Finding Title Status

2006-001 incomplete or Missing Expenditure Documentation | Repeated
2006-003 Proper Segregation of Duties Repeated
2011-002 Violation of the Three Day Banking Law Corrected
2012-001 Lack of Control over Assets Received from the Repeated

Department of Defense Surplus Program

2012-002 Unrecorded Bank Accounts Corrected
2012-003 Fundraising Activities Corrected
2013-001 inveniory Corrected
2013-002 Net Operating Loss Correcied
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30, 2014

{L.

Summary of Auditors’ Results

A. The June 30, 2014 Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements was modified due 1© & fundamenial lack
of internal control over assets, particularly in relation to the recording of assets acquired as donations
from the United States Department of Defense surplus programs, as well as undocumented bank
accounts and fundraising activities.

B. Significant deficiencies in internal controt were disclosed by the audit and are discussed in findings 2006-
003 and 2013-001.

C. Findings 2012-001 are considered material weaknesses.

D. Instances of noncompliance were disclosed by the audit and are discussed below in findings 2006-001,
2013-002, and 2014-001.

E. The report on compliance for major programs was an unqualified opinion.

F. There were no findings required to be reported under 510(a).

G. Major Programs - United States Department of Education Title |, Part A, CFDA #84.010; United States
Depariment of Agriculiure Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities, CFDA #10.760;
United States Department of Transportation Highway Planning and Construction (Federal-Aid Highway
Program) CFDA #20.205; United States Department of Education IDEA, CFDA #84.027 and #84.713;
United States Department of Education Teacher Incentive Fund, CFDA #84.374A,

H. Type A programs have been distinguished as those programs or clusters of programs with expenditures
greater than $300,000.

. The City of Manchester was not considered to be a low risk audites.

Findings Related to the Financial Statements, which are required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

(2006-001)  Incomplete or Missing Expendifure Documentation

During our audit, we found expenditures for which documentation was incomplete or missing in iis entirety.
Missing documents inctuded invoices, statemenis, approved requisition orders, and copies of cancelled
checks.

Recommendation:

The Internal Control and Compliance Manual for Tennessee Municipaliies staies that supporting
documentation, such as invoices, receiving reports {signed), and other decuments, must be obtained for all
purchases. They should be attached together and filed in such a way that they can be easily found for future
reference and audit. Each invoice should be stamped, perforated, or otherwise marked as paid when sach
check is written. Disbursements should always be paid from the original invoice, and payment from a
statement alone is insufficient. Disbursements should be approved by the head of each depariment.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED GOSTS {(continued)

June 30, 2014

(2006-001}  incomplete or Missing Expenditure Documentation (continued)

City's Comment:
The City has implemented policies and procedures that require supporting documentation on all invoices,

approved first by the department or their assistant, and approved by the Finance Director prior to being
submitted for payments. When an invoice is ready for paymeant, the department head or their assistant is
required to submit the invoice, attach a signed packing slip if provided and a signed check requisition form
approving the invoice far payment. The amount requested is checked to make sure that requisition form is
the same amount as the invoice. The Finance Director approves alt invoices and reviews all checks beiore
they are mailed or released. A copy of the check is attached to the invoice and stamped "paid.” It is then filed
in numerical order for easy access untit the end of the fiscal year.

Disposition:
As of June 30, 2014, this problem continues to exist.

(2006-003)  Proper Segregation of Duties

In our review of the overall accounting controls of the Ciiy's agccounting system, we found several areas where
proper segregation of duties might be obtained.

Hecommendation:

Because of the number of office employees working for the City, we do not believe & compleie segregation of
duties is possible that would eliminate all weaknesses in the City's accounting system. However,
managemeni shoudd consider a thorough study of the internal conirol aspect of the accounting system.
Certain additional procedures and segregation of proper duties should increase the controt over the assets.

City’s Comment:
Although this problem was stiit in existence, we are coniinuing to work to improve the segregation of duties

without compromising internal controls.

Disposition:
As of June 30, 2014, this problem continues to exist.

{2011-002)  Violation of the Three Day Banking Law

Deposits are not always being made within three days of receipt. This includes not only regular deposits
related to the normal course of City operations, but also cash seized during arrests.

Disposition:
As of June 30, 2014, this problem na longer exists.

{2012-001)  Lack of Control over Assets Received from the Depariment of Defense Surpius Program

In 2012, audit testing and inquiries in refation to control over fixed assels revealed a fundamental lack of
control over fixed assets, in particular in relation to the acquisition, use and disposal of asseis and supplies
obtained through the Department of Defense Law Enforcement Support Office (LESO) surplus program.
While we were able to physically cbsarve and frace some of the assets received, we were unable to
completely reconcile assets received as per confirmations with the Departiment of Defense to the asset
activity recorded on the City’s fixes asset listing and aother financial information. Estimated valuss obtained
from the Department of Defense iotal in excess of $600,000 for the assets and supplies the City received
during the year ended June 30, 2012. This situation was also present ai the beginning of the current fiscal

year.
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CITY OF MANCHESTER, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
June 30, 2014

(2012-001}  Lack of Control over Assets Received from the Department of Defense Surplus Program (continued)

Recommendation:

The City should prepare an inventory accouniing for all asseis held by the City. Any matenal differences
between the current fisting and the actual inventory should be reconciled to available receipt and disposal
records,  The Gity should also review the internal conirol system regarding fixed assets, identifying
deficiencies and making changes to the policies as deemed necessary.

City’s Comment:
We concur with the finding and are currenily reviewing proceduras to ensure that this issue is corrected.

Disposition;
As of June 30, 2014, this problem still exists,

{2012-002)  Unrecorded Bank Accounts

We jound funds held by the police and fire departments which were not previously recorded with other City
financial information. During the audit period, both accounts were held in the {ederal identification number of
the Gity of Manchester. Information regarding these accounts is surmmarized in the following paragraphs:

Folice Deparirment

The police depariment was found to have possession of a passbook savings account with a balance at
June 30, 2012 of $8,166.56. Beiween July 1, 2011 and June 30, 2042, $23,325 was deposited into the
account and $20,376 in cash was withdrawn by authorized signors on the account. At the Hime of both audits,
no documentation was available to determine or support as te how these withdrawals were spent. Thersefore,
we were unable to determine if the aclivities recorded were legitimate police department activities, Regarding
ihe monies deposited, approximately $2,600 was determined to be payroll deductions. However, the source
of the remaining $20,725 in deposits was undeterminable.

This account was closed in April 2013. Howaever, between July 1, 2012 and June 30, 2013, §1,128.16 was
deposited into the account and $17,421.41 was withdrawn from the account,

Fire Department.

The fire department was found to have possession of a checking account with a balance at June 30, 2012 of
$7,275. Between July 1, 2011 and June 30. 2012, $13,739 was deposited into the account and checks
totaling $10,424 were written. At the time of the audit, no documentation other than copies of cancelled
checks and a checkbook register were available to confirm how these withdrawals were spent. Therefore, we
were unable to determine if the activilies recorded were legitimate fire depariment activiies. Hegister
summaries indicate activities, which include a chili cook-off, seasonat activitias held for the public, donations
and purchases of Christras gifts. Regarding the monies deposited, approximately $3,800 was determined {c
be payroll deductions. The register indicated other sources of income to be calendar sales, chili cook-off
revenue and donations. These were also unable to be confirmed.

This account was closed in April 2013. However, hetween July 1, 2012 and June 30, 2013, §8,230.00 was
deposited into the account and $15,504.92 was withdrawn from the account. $7,369.46 was able to be traced
at closing to the City’s Pooled Cash bank account.

Disposition
As of June 30, 2014, this problem no longer exists.
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(2012-003)  Fundraising Activities

During our audit, we found evidence of certain fundraisers held in the name of the City of Manchester. These
fundraisers included seasonal cruise-in's, department calendar sales, a police golf tournament, and charity
fundraising for certain individuals. No reconciliations or other documsniation were available o determine
amounts collected or disbursed for these events. No income was found deposited in the City’s financial
records, which could be attributed {o these events. There were certain fundraising related expendiiures found
which were paid out of Gity funds, primarily from the Community Poiicing Fund. These expenditures included
items such as ielevisions, admission tickets, drinks, and various car-cleaning supplies.

tn addition, promotional fivers acquired during our audit indicated that some of the fundraisers were held to
raise monies for specific activities, such as toys for needy children. Because of the lack of supporting
documentation, it was undeterminable as to whether funds were spent in the manner in which donors and

participants weare told.

Also, in our review of promotional flyers, we observed the advertisement of "50/50" drawings. Any game of
chance, including, but not limited to raffles, is illegal in the State of Tennessee unless prior approval is
received in advance through the Tennessee Division of Charitable Solicitations.

Disposition
As of June 30, 2014, this problem no ienger exists.

(2013-001)  Inventory
City officials did not ensure that complete inveniory records of high-risk, moveable property were maintained.

Disposition:
As of June 30, 2014, this problem no longer exisis.

(2013-002)  Net operating loss

The Water and Sewer Fund suffered a net operaiing loss of $32,812.73 in the prior fiscal year,

Disposition:
As of June 30, 2014, this problem no longer exists.

{2014-001)  Authorized Signatures

Confirmation of bank account information from the Town's financial institution revealed that several bank
accounts require only one authorized signature to withdraw or iransfer funds.

Hecommendation:

Title 5, Chapter 11, Section 7 of the Internal Conirel and Compliance Manual for Tennessae Municipalities
states that two authorized signatures are required for all checks. Authorized signature cards at the bank must
be current. Before signing checks, sach signatory should review adequate supporting documentation (such
as vendor invoices, purchase authorizations, etc).

City's Comment:
The Gity was made aware of this problem during this audit. The City is currenily reviewing all signature cards

with banks to correct this problem.
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